Jefferson County Industrial Development Agency
800 Starbuck Avenue, Suite 800
Watertown, New York 13601
Telephone: (315) 782-5865 or (800) 553-4111 Facsimile (315) 782-7915
' www.jcida.com

Notice of Board Meeting

Date: - August 18, 2022 .

To: John Jennings
David Converse
W. Edward Walldroff
Paul Warneck
William Johnson
Lisa L’Huillier

From: Chairman Robert Aliasso

Re: Notice of Board of Directors’ Meeting

The Jefferson County Industrial Development Agency will hold their monthly Board Meeting on
Thursday, September 1, 2022 at 8:30 a.m. in the board room at 800 Starbuck Avenue,
Watertown, NY.

The live stream link will be available at www.jcida.com.

Zoom:
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/84355250468 7pwd=R0t4ViRPdGIBZDJrL2JQYVVKytDdz09

Meeting ID: 843 5525 0468
Passcode: 011440
1-929-205-6099 US (New York)

Please confirm your attendance with Peggy Sampson pssampson@jcida.com at your earliest
convenience.

pss

G David Zembiec, CEO
Marshall Weir
Lyle Eaton
Christine Powers
Greg Gardner
Kent Burto
Rob Aiken
Justin Miller, Esq.
Media



Jefferson County Industrial Development Agency
800 Starbuck Avenue, Suite 800, Watertown, New York 13601
Telephone: (315) 782-5865 or (800) 553-4111 Facsimile (315) 782-7915
www.jcida.com

IL.

I11.

IV.

VI

VII.

VIIIL.

IX.

BOARD MEETING AGENDA
Thursday, September 1, 2022 - 8:30 a.m.

Call to Order

Pledge of Allegiance

Privilege of the Floor '

Minutes — August 4, 2022

Treasurer’s Report — August 31, 2022
Committee Reports

a. Corporate Park Ad Hoc Committee

i. Lawman Group building review (Lots 10 &11) _
ii. Easement with the Town of Watertown for Water District No. 1

b. Loan Review Committee
i. Resolution No. 09.01.2022.01 for Sally Port View LLC

Unfinished Business
1. 146 Arsenal Street update
New Business

Counsel

Assignment Resolution No. 09.01.2022.02 for OYA Ellisburg Solar

Initial Project Resolution No. 09.01.2022.03 for Wilna PV, LLC

Initial Project Resolution No. 09.01.2022.04 for L2, LLC

Initial Project Resolution No. 09.01.2022.05 for Three Mile Bay Ventures LL.C

(Sally Port View, LLC)

5. Project Authorizing Resolution No. 09.01.2022.06 for Watertown Renewables,
LLC (North Site)

6. Project Authorizing Resolution No. 09.01.2022.07 for Watertown Renewables,

LLC (South Site)

ol ol A

Adjournment



Jefferson County Industrial Development Agency
Board Meeting Minutes
August 4, 2022

The Jefferson County Industrial Development Agency held their board meeting on Thursday, August 4,
2022 in the board room at 800 Starbuck Avenue, Watertown, NY.

Present: Robert E. Aliasso, Jr., William Johnson, Paul Warneck, Lisa L’Huillier, David Converse, John
Jennings, W. Edward Walldroff

Excused: None

Absent: None

Also Present: Christine Powers, Rob Aiken, Kent Burto, Ed Valentine, Craig Fox (Watertown Daily
Times), Brendan Straub (Channel 7 News)
Zoom: Justin Miller, Esq., Genevieve Trigg, Esq., Dallas Manson, PJ Simao

Staff Present: David Zembiec, Marshall Weir, Lyle Eaton, Peggy Sampson, Jay Matteson, Joy Nuffer

L

II.

III.

IV.

Call to Order: Chairman Aliasso called the meeting to order at 8:30 a.m.
Privilege of the Floor: Chairman Aliasso invited guests to speak. No one spoke.

Minutes: Minutes of the meeting held July 7, 2022 were presented. A motion to approve the
minutes as presented was made by Ms. L’Huillier, seconded by Mr. Jennings. All in favor.
Carried.

Treasurer’s Report: Mr. Warneck reviewed the financials for the period ending July 31, 2022.
He said that we should meet the budgeted PILOT fee expectation if all of the pending projects
close this year. He reported that the YMCA project at 146 Arsenal Street has broke ground and is
moving forward. Mr. Warneck mentioned the major swing on the balance sheet from transferring
some of the ARPA funds to the JCLDC and reported that the RBM loan has been brought current.

After discussion, a motion was made by Mr. Warneck to accept the financial statement as
presented, seconded by Mr. Johnson. All in favor. Carried.

Committee Reports:

a. Alternative Energy Ad Hoc Committee — Mr. Warneck said the committee met twice
since the last board meeting to review two new solar projects to be located on Floral
Drive in the Town of Watertown. He said the committee was supportive in forwarding
them to the board. He said that we are struggling with the issue of battery storage and
how to value it since it is hard to estimate what the taxes will be because the state’s
model is currently suspended. He did say that we are using the state’s model and noted
that our software isn’t geared to handle battery storage. He said there are two large scale
projects moving forward, but noted that we have not received applications as of yet.

b. Loan Review Committee — Mr. Aliasso said the committee met to review the two new
solar projects in the Town of Watertown. He noted that it is one parcel that has been split
to meet state requirements for community solar projects. The committee is
recommending board approval.



Jefferson County Industrial Development Agency
Board Meeting Minutes

August 4, 2022

Mr. Warneck suggested rearranging the agenda to review the two projects at this time. Chairman
Aliasso agreed.

VI. Counsel:

1.

Initial Project Resolution No. 08.04.2022.02 for Watertown Renewables, LLC (North
Site) — Chairman Aliasso read the purpose of the resolution. He asked for a motion to discuss
the resolution/project. A motion was made by Mr. Warneck, seconded by Mr. Walldroff.

Mr. Jennings asked if a decommissioning plan has been approved. Ms. Manson said they do
have a decommissioning plan with the Town of Watertown. Mr. Warneck asked if the bond

is in place and if so what the value of it is. Ms. Manson said the total bond is $340,000. The
cost benefit analysis was reviewed.

Roll call vote. Mr. Aliasso — Yea, Mr. Converse — Yea, Mr. Jennings — Yea, Mr. Johnson —
Yea, Ms. L’Huillier — Yea, Mr. Walldroff — Yea, Mr. Warneck — Yea. Carried.

Initial Project Resolution No. 08.04.2022.03 for Watertown Renewables, LLC (South
Site) — Chairman Aliasso read the purpose of the resolution. He asked for a motion to discuss
the resolution/project. A motion was made by Mr. Johnson, seconded by Mr. Converse.

The cost benefit analysis was reviewed. There was a question about adding to the grid. Ms.
Manson said community solar projects continue to go directly to the grid. She said that the
agreement that they have with National Grid for the non-wires program enables National Grid
to request them to discharge to the grid during peak hours to handle the capacity issue at the
Coffeen Street substation.

Roll call vote. Mr. Aliasso — Yea, Mr. Converse — Yea, Mr. Jennings — Yea, Mr. Johnson —
Yea, Ms. L’Huillier — Yea, Mr. Walldroff — Yea, Mr. Warneck — Yea. Carried.

VIIL. Unfinished Business:

1.

146 Arsenal Street update — Mr. Zembiec said the YMCA has broke ground and is moving
forward. He said that he and Marshall meet with Y officials for weekly progress reports.

VIII. New Business:

1.

Resolution No. 08.04.2022.01 for Town of Hounsfield Wastewater System — A request to
approve an initial grant to the Town of Hounsfield an amount no to exceed $400,000, which
the Town shall use to contract for the engineering services to design the wastewater system.
The County allotted $1,500,000 from the United States Coronavirus State and Local Fiscal
Recovery Fund to the Agency for the purpose of assisting the Town in constructing the
wastewater system to serve the Business Complex at Watertown International. A motion was
made by Mr. Warneck to approve the resolution, seconded by Mr. Walldroff. All in favor.
Carried.



Jefferson County Industrial Development Agency

Board Meeting Minutes
August 4, 2022

2.

Lawman Group building review (Corporate Park) — Chairman Aliasso said this item was
a late entry on the agenda and noted that the board has not had enough time to review it nor
did the corporate park tenants. Mr. Zembiec said that there is no hurry since they are on the
agenda for the Town of Watertown planning board agenda in September and indicated that
we have not received the PILOT application as of yet. Mr. Converse said the board can
discuss the building review to see if anyone has any questions or comments that can be
relayed to the Lawman Group. He said that the proposal is for a manufacturing facility which
is an allowable use as long the setback requirements are met.

Mr. Warneck said that staff can send out the information to the park tenants for comments
and then the park committee can convene to review and discuss the project. Chairman
Aliasso said that it appears that parking will project out in front of the building. Mr. Warneck
asked to have the deed covenants sent to the board members.

IX. Adjournment: With no further business before the board, a motion to adjourn was made by Mr.
Warneck, seconded by Mr. Johnson. All in favor. The meeting adjourned at 9:07 a.m.

Respectfully submitted,
P
Fegqy Oampaon



JEFFERSON COUNTY INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY
Prepared by Joy Nuffer, August 25, 2022
Income Statement for the Eight Month Period Ending August 31, 2022

Revenues

Application & Process Fees
Bond Admin Fee

FTZ Annual Fee

PILOT/Sale Leaseback Fees
Fee Income - RLF Program
Fee Income - Micro Program
Grant Income - Federal ARPA
Interest Income

Interest Income - RLF Program
Late Payment Penalty RLF
Interest Income - City Fund
Interest Income - Micro Prog.
Late Payment Penalty - Micro
Miscellaneous Income

YMCA Income

YMCA Grant Income

Total Revenues

Operations

Office Expense

Admin Services Exp
Depreciation Expense - Siding
D&O Insurance

Commercial Insurance

FTZ Expense

Legal- Retainer

Legal - Unrestricted

Legal YMCA

Accounting & Auditing

Coffeen Park Taxes

Airport Park Taxes

Fees Expense

Grant Expense - Federal ARPA
GRANTS EXPENSE YMCA
Bad Debt--RLF

Bad Debt--Micro

RLF Program Expense
Microenterprise Program Exp
RLF Audit Expense

146 Arsenal Bldg Maintenance
Plowing 146 Arsenal

IDA 146 Arsenal Bldg Expense
Building Depreciation

146 Arsenal Gas

146 Arsenal Electric

146 Arsenal Water
Miscellaneous - Unrestricted

Total Operations

Total Revenue
Total Expenses

Net Income Over Expenditures

Page: 1

UNRECONCILED

Current Year-to-Dat Current Previous Balance
Year e Total Month Month Remaining
Budget
$ 11,000.00 23,750.00 $ 2,500.00 0.00 (12,750.00)
6,000.00 3,000.00 0.00 0.00 3,000.00
1,200.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 1,200.00
1,227,142.00 532,175.33 183,808.00 0.00 694,966.67
24,474.00 39,804.16 3,618.56 3,618.56 (15,330.16)
13,389.00 23,069.94 2,097.26 2,097.26 (9,680.94)
0.00 3,059,000.00 850,000.00 2,209,000.00 (3,059,000.00)
2,481.00 710.27 0.00 58.78 1,770.73
29,085.00 17,751.64 5,529.11 175.95 11,333.36
0.00 114.42 114.42 0.00 (114.42)
3,600.00 1,945.39 0.00 0.00 1,654.61
9,650.00 8,326.66 710.52 764.12 1,323.34
0.00 323.32 126.03 0.00 (323.32)
1,500.00 21,552.93 1,193.62 0.00 (20,052.93)
0.00 30,361.38 13,864.51 4,067.19 (30,361.38)
0.00 496,752.69 496,752.69 0.00 (496,752.69)
1,329,521.00 4,258,638.13 1,560,314.72 2,219,781.86 (2,929,117.13)
2,036.00 3,257.06 242.26 492.73 (1,221.06)
792,260.00 556,316.00 58,985.00 58,985.00 235,944.00
40,739.00 14,937.56 1,357.96 1,357.96 25,801.44
19,000.00 13,866.38 1,260.58 1,260.58 5,133.62
36,354.00 27,082.33 2,462.03 2,462.03 9,271.67
1,250.00 1,250.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
0.00 16,500.00 1,500.00 1,500.00 (16,500.00)
50,000.00 21,880.39 0.00 0.00 28,119.61
10,000.00 13,600.00 11,025.00 0.00 (3,600.00)
16,000.00 11,400.00 0.00 0.00 4,600.00
1,800.00 1,743.44 0.00 0.00 56.56
1,200.00 1,056.39 0.00 0.00 143.61
3,000.00 110.00 0.00 0.00 2,890.00
0.00 2,059,000.00 850,000.00 1,209,000.00 (2,059,000.00)
0.00 496,752.69 496,752.69 0.00 (496,752.69)
190,000.00 (19,699.50) 0.00 0.00 209,699.50
31,000.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 31,000.00
24,474.00 39,804.16 3,618.56 3,618.56 (15,330.16)
13,389.00 23,069.94 2,097.26 2,097.26 (9,680.94)
800.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 800.00
0.00 1,057.19 0.00 0.00 (1,057.19)
0.00 15,900.00 0.00 0.00 (15,900.00)
0.00 26,264.79 77.35 451.99 (26,264.79)
29,321.00 26,970.82 8,076.64 1,058.34 2,350.18
0.00 7,962.72 0.00 0.00 (7,962.72)
0.00 32,763.67 0.00 2,449.89 (32,763.67)
0.00 3,079.32 0.00 312.27 (3,079.32)
200.00 103.23 0.00 0.00 96.77
1,262,823.00 3,396,028.58 1,437,455.33 1,285,046.61 (2,133,205.58)
1,329,521.00 4,258,638.13 1,560,314.72 2,219,781.86 (2,929,117.13)
1,262,823.00 3,396,028.58 1,437,455.33 1,285,046.61 (2,133,205.58)
$ 66,698.00 862,609.55 $ 122,859.39 934,735.25 (795,911.55)

For Intern_g_Jse Only



Current Assets

General Checking

Savings Account
Microenterprise Account

City Loan Account

Revolving Loan Fund Account
PILOT Monies Receivable
Miscellaneous Receivable
Accounts Receivable YMCA
Acct Receivable - Rogers
RLF Loans Receivable
Microenterprise Loans Rec.
Allowance for Bad Debt-RLF
Allow. for Bad Debts-MICRO
Prepaid Expense

Total Current Assets

Property and Equipment

Accum Depr - Building

Accum Depr. Equipment
Accumulated Depreciation Sidin

Total Property and Equipment

Other Assets

IT Server

Equipment

Corp. Park Improvements
Airport Property
Intangible Asset

WIP Airport

WIP Intersection
Woolworth Building

Rail Siding CCIP

Land 146 Arsenal

146 Ars Building Improvements

Total Other Assets

Total Assets

Current Liabilities

Accounts Payable - Unrestricte
PILOT Monies Payable

RLF Loan Payable

Due HUD - RLF Interest

Due HUD - MICRO Interest
Due HUD - CITY Loan Interest
Maintenance Reserve Convergys
Maintenance Expense Convergys
ARPA Airport Sewer

Car Freshner Signage

Total Current Liabilities

Jefferson County IDA
Balance Sheet
August 31, 2022

ASSETS

1,683,798.98
258,400.27
98,174.25
287,872.59
2,120,708.35
3,551.00
123,999.81
4,067.19
17,519.31
2,324,534.73
195,497.70
(190,000.00)
(30,641.75)
4,172.75

(1,042,677.88)
(52,269.66)
(21,727.36)

6,050.00
13,366.00
209,995.14
884,326.02
53,195.00
311,958.46
244,973.52
505,000.00
244,434.00
8,577.50
3,264,556.08

$

6,901,655.18

(1,116,674.90)

5,746,431.72

11,531,412.00

LIABILITIES AND CAPITAL

12,696.00
3,551.00
1,000,000.00
577.21

5.28

2.45
14,445.48
25,927.57
1,500,000.00
11,000.00

2,568,204.99

Unaudited - For Man_7 _1ent Purposes Only



Long-Term Liabilities

Due NYS/IAP L.T.
Deferred Revenue - Rogers
Total Long-Term Liabilities

Total Liabilities

Capital

General Fund Bal - Unrestrict.

Fund Bal - RLF Restricted
Fund Bal - Micro Restricted
Fund Bal - City Restricted
Cap. Impr. Convergys

Net Income

Total Capital

Total Liabilities & Capital

Jefferson County IDA
Balance Sheet

August 31, 2022
180,159.78
18,000.51
198,160.29
2,766,365.28

1,826,227.59
4,419,309.27
414,850.76
262,489.22
979,560.33
862,609.55

8,765,046.72

$ 11,531,412.00

Unaudited - For Man_ g _aent Purposes Only



8/25/22 at 09:17:49.35

Jefferson County IDA
Miscellaneous Receivables
As of Aug 31, 2022
Filter Criteria includes: 1) Includes Drop Shipments. Report order is by ID. Report is printed in Detail Format.

Page: 1

Customer ID
Customer

Bill To Contact
Telephone 1

Invoice/lCM

0-30

61-90 Over 90 days

Amount Due

CONVALT
CONVALT ENERGY. LLC

CONVALT
CONVALT ENERGY. LLC

MLR,LLC
MLR,LLC

MLR,LLC
MLR,LLC

YMCA
YMCA
EX DIRECTOR DENISE YOUNG

YMCA
YMCA

Report Total

3669

3716

3748
3749

27,486.30

27,486.30

27,486.30

27,486.30

91,225.00

91,225.00

91,225.00

91,225.00

2,839.51
11,025.00

2,839.51
11,025.00

13,864.51

13,864.51

13,864.51

118,711.30

132,575.81




8/25/22 at 09:15:29.97

Jefferson County IDA

General Checking Cash Receipts Journal
For the Period From Aug 1, 2022 to Aug 31, 2022
Filter Criteria includes: Report order is by Check Date. Report is printed in Detail Format.

Page: 1

Date AccountID Transaction Line Description Debit Amnt ~ Credit Amnt
8/4/22 125001 1242 Invoice: 3726 2,097.26
100001 JEFFERSON COUNTY INDUSTRIAL 2,097.26
8/4/22 125001 2192 Invoice: 3725 3,618.56
100001 JEFFERSON COUNTY INDUSTRIAL 3,618.56
8/4/22 425001 7002277943 TEMPORARY WORK ON GAS LINE AT 1,193.62
CORPORATE PARK-REIMBURSEMENT
100001 NATIONAL GRID 1,193.62
8/4/22 240004 ACH ARPA SMALL BUSINESS PRODUCTIVITY 425,000.00
GRANT
240005 ARPA RENTAL PROPERTY DEFERRED 425,000.00
MAINTENANCE GRANT
240006 ARPA AIRPORT PARK SEWER GRANT 1,500,000.00
100001 JEFFERSON COUNTY TREASURER 2,350,000.00
8/15/22 205602 WIRE CONVALT DUE SHLDC 833.33
202702 CONVALT DUE RLF 3,541.67
100001 CONVALT ENERGY. LLC 4,375.00
8/16/22 125001 WIRE Invoice: 3746 183,808.00
100001 CWT FARMS INTERNATIONAL 183,808.00
8/18/22 207005 19597 DUE MICRO 565.35
205602 DUE SHLDC 424.02
100001 PAINFULL ACRES 989.37
8/25/22 125001 16406 Invoice: 3751 2,500.00
100001 WILNA PV, LLC 2,500.00
8/25/22 125001 13488 Invoice: 3750 2,500.00
100001 L2, LLC 2,500.00
2,551,081.81 2,551,081.81

-10-




Jefferson County Industrial Development Agency

MICRO Loan Fund Receivables
August 31, 2022

Original Current Payment Current
Recipient Date Issued Amount Balance Amount Status Purpose of Loan
Colleens Cherry Tree Inn 5/1/2019] $40,000.00| $24,334.66] $1,421.18] 2 Months |Expand Restaurant - Ice Ceram Shop
R. L. Gould & Son, LLC 3/1/2019|  $40,000.00| $16,423.07 $750.30 Current  [Open UPS Store
Tl Area Habitat For Humanity 4/1/2018|  $40,000.00| $8,099.39 $754.85 Current  |Open ReStore
Painfull Acres 3/1/2018| $40,000.00| $18,371.03 $565.35 Current  |Amish Furniture Store
Pink Kettle 2/23/2022] $24,800.00| $22,961.36 $468.01 Current Retail Beverages
Sarah's Barber Shop 3/11/2020( $10,000.00| $6,867.40 $188.71|Demand Letter|Barber Shop
The Scrub Hub 4/1/2018 $18,656.00f $3,083.52 $352.06 Current Scrubs Clothing
Standard Machine 8/21/2021 $40,000.00| $37,352.70 $749.30|Demand Letter|Fabrication
Taste of Design 4/1/2007| $40,000.00{ $14,702.68| ~ $277.54 1 Month  |Coffee Shop
Therartpy 7/1/2021] $10,102.00| $8,121.84 $190.64 Current  |Art Therapy
Willowbrook 7/28/2021| $40,000.00| $35,180.05 $754.85 Current  |Purchase Golf Club
Total MICRO Receivables $343,558.00| $195,497.70
accounting/IDA Financials -11-




Jefferson County Industrial Development Agency
Revolving Loan Fund Receivables

August 31, 2022
Loan Current Payment Current
Recipient Date Issued Amount Balance Amount Status Purpose of Loan
1|Convalt 07/13/22 $850,000.00 $850,000.00 $2,625.00| Current |Participation (SHLDC) Bridge loan
2|JCIDA 08/01/21 $2,000,000.00] $1,000,000.00 $0.00| Current |146 Arsenal Remediation
3|MLR, LLC 07/01/07 $250,000.00 $76,029.70 $1,307.83 Current  |Expand Warehouse
4|Meadowbrook Terrace 08/01/12 $250,000.00 $17,084.05 $2,879.32] Current |Working Cap During Construction
5|RBM Manufacturing 11/22/19 $400,000.00/  $381,330.98 $953.48| *1 month |Working Capital Additional 11/2020
' . *Interest only
Total RLF Receivables $3,750,000.00] $2,324,444.73

3119

Z:\Accounting DepartmentiDA MONTHLY FINANCIALS\IDA FINANC!AI SUDA FINANCIALS FY 2009 - XXXX\JCIDA Financials A_R CYE 12




8/25/22 at 09:19:17.42

Jefferson County IDA

Cash Disbursements Journal
For the Period From Aug 1, 2022 to Aug 31, 2022
Filter Criteria includes: Report order is by Date. Report is printed in Detail Format.

Page: 1

Date Check# AccountID Line Description Debit Amount Credit Amount

8/1/22 7799 200001 Invoice: 7-828-51992 45.77
100001 FEDERAL EXPRESS CORP. 45.77

8/1/22 7800 200001 Invoice: 2368 58,985.00
100001 JEFF COUNTY LDC 58,985.00

8/1/22 7801 200001 Invoice: 45150-7/22 771.96

200001 Invoice: 45157-7/22 23.57
100001 NATIONAL GRID 795.53

8/4/22 7802 200001 Invoice: RENTAL PROPERTY 425,000.00
100001 JEFF COUNTY LDC 425,000.00

8/4/22 7803 200001 Invoice: SMALL BUS.PROD. 425,000.00
100001 JEFF COUNTY LDC 425,000.00

8/11/22 7804 200001 Invoice: 22-761 11,573.81
100001 BERNIER, CARR & ASSOCIATES, P.C. 11,573.81

8/11/22 7805 200001 Invoice: 17024-7/22 1,654.36
100001 NATIONAL GRID 1,654.36

8/11/22 7806 200001 Invoice: 7/22-1815 43.38

200001 Invoice: 0011-7/22 268.89
100001 CITY OF WATERTOWN COMPTROLLER 312.27

8/16/22 7807 200001 Invoice: 8872740 1,500.00

200001 Invoice: 8872743 11,025.00
100001 HARRIS BEACH 12,525.00

8/16/22 7808 200001 Invoice: 8/22 & 9/22 CONVALT 3,641.67
100001 JEFFERSON COUNTY INDUSTRIAL 3,541.67

8/16/22 7809 200001 Invoice: 8/22 & 9/22 CONVALT 833.33
100001 SACKETS HARBOR LDC 833.33

8/16/22 7810 200001 Invoice: 32003 77.35
100001 WESTELCOM 77.35

8/18/22 7811 200001 Invoice: REFUND-FEE 2,500.00
100001 CWT FARMS INTERNATIONAL 2,500.00

8/25/22 7812 200001 Invoice: 92040243 373.50
100001 ABJ FIRE PROTECTION CO 373.50

8/25/22 7813 200001 Invoice: 7-850-44112 42.26
100001 FEDERAL EXPRESS CORP. 42.26

8/25/22 7814 200001 Invoice: 8/22 PAINFULL 565.35
100001 JEFFERSON COUNTY INDUSTRIAL 565.35

8/25/22 7815 200001 Invoice: 8/22 PAINFULL 424.02
100001 SACKETS HARBOR LDC 424.02
Total 944,249.22 944,249.22

-13-




8/25/22 at 09:18:44.91

Jefferson County IDA
Unrestricted Aged Payables

As of Aug 31, 2022
Filter Criteria includes: 1) Includes Drop Shipments. Report order-is by ID. Report is printed in Detail Format.

Page: 1

Vendor Invoice/CM # Date Net To Pay
BERNIER, CARR & ASSOCIATES, P.C. 21-1266 8/22/22 4,118.50
21-1387 8/24/22 8,577.50

BERNIER, CARR & ASSOCIATES, P.C. ' 12,696.00
12,696.00

-14-



Jefferson County Industrial Development Agency
Corporate Park Ad hoc Committee Meeting Minutes
August 30, 2022

Present: Paul Warneck, Rob Aiken, David Converse

Excused: John Jennings

Also Present: David Zembiec, Marshall Weir, Peggy Sampson, Christine Powers

L
II.

IIL.

IV.

Call to Order: Mr. Converse called the meeting to order at 8:02 a.m.

Pledge of Allegiance

Lawman Site Plans for Lots 10 & 11 — Mr. Zembiec said that the Town of Watertown
Planning Board (PB) is reviewing the site plans. While they no longer approve spec
buildings, they will consider a spec building that is identifying a specific use. Lot 11 is
designated as a manufacturing facility. Mr. Warneck suggested that we ask the developer
to confirm the use, and have it reviewed by the PB when applicable, because there are
certain uses that are not acceptable under the covenants even under the manufacturing

use.

Mr. Zembiec said that he sent a note to the park tenants and reported that he did not
receive any comments back.

Mr. Warneck said a one of his concerns is the joint driveway between the two lots. He
said there should be easements in place to protect both properties later on. Mr. Warneck
said there could be more robust screening by adding more trees than what is currently
shown. Mr. Converse feels that there is no need to go overboard since the parking lot
will be facing another parking lot and that there are several trees shown on the plan. He

thinks the plan is acceptable. '

After discussion, a motion was made by Mr. Warneck to move the plans to the full board
for approval to send to the Town of Watertown Planning Board with our comments,
seconded by Mr. Converse. : '

Requested Easement for Town of Watertown Sewer Project — A request from the
Town of Watertown (Water District No. 1 Extension) for a permanent and perpetual
easement through vacant land on County Route 200 (Corporate Park) for the purpose of
constructing, laying, installing, replacing, relocating, operating, maintaining, cleaning,
repairing, and removing water lines, and appurtenances for the transmission of potable
water.

Mr. Zembiec reviewed the map that was included in proposed easement. He said that he
will request a better map for the board packet.

-15-



Jefferson County Industrial Development Agency
Corporate Park Ad hoc Committee Meeting Minutes
August 30,2022

VI.

VII.

Mr. Warneck asked if the site will be restored to its preexisting condition. The proposed
easement indicates that it will except for trees or shrubs that may have to be cut or

removed.
Committee members agreed to move the request to the full board of directors.

Update on Turning Lane — Mr. Zembiec said that he continues to monitor the progress
with DOT. He said the utility pole was relocated and National Grid is waiting on Alex
Morgia (new owner of the Timeless Frames building) to approve an easement for
relocating the gas lines. An easement with Onondaga Development has already been
secured. Mr. Zembiec said that he will check with Jim Lawrence to see how this all
affects the timeline for the County Highway Department to start site work.

Other/Unfinished Business: None.

Adjournment: With no further business before the committee, a motion to adjourn was
made by Mr. Warneck, seconded by Mr. Converse. The meeting adjourned at 8:18 a.m.

Respectfully submitted,
q

-16-



| PROPOSED LAWMAN HEADQUARTERS

LOT-10 JEFFERSON COUNTY CORPORATE PARK
WATERTOWN, N.Y.

INDEX OF DRAWINGS:

C-1 COVER SHEET

SITE

L-100  OVERALL SITE PLAN
L-101 LOT 10 SITE PLAN

ARCHITECTURAL

A-100 SCHEMATIC FLOOR PLAN LOT 10
A-300  SCHEMATIC EXTERIOR ELEVATIONS LOT 10

DEVELOPED BY: DESIGNED & BUILT BY:
DESIGN
T/\_T‘HE BUILD
AWMAN INNOVATIONS
Grour

Yaum Tora Covsmmucnion Suwton

IN CONJUNCTION WITH:

MOSHER
ARCHITECTS, P.C.

w

MOSHER |-

ARCHITECTS. P.C.

PROPOSED LAWMAN HEADQUARTERS

LOT-10 JEFFERSON COUNTY
CORPORATE PARK WATERTOWN, N.Y.

THe
Tt/l\vﬁ‘wnu

MGROUP

Your ToraL Comarauecniun Suwunon

DESIGN
BUILD
INNOVATIONS

o ——

WATERTOWN -
COVER
SHEET
c-1

YTy

-17-




LEGEND SENERAL NOTES
L = U TR PLM
LAPAVE, TR € MESIVERR L8, PC LD BAVEYDRS, DATED 3102013
Coon - —an E— D AL DeTAEED axess sax 1O REcE A4 TOTROL ¢ 962D
WTOR PR — T - =senuor = VSIS hOTIO ST Eves
bl e o om0 3 paTer £ 8D e o s 0 BvBLY P
N = == ——eees =
4 senoinie watpns, noTEe.

meosmva | —expamm e A NN PLANTED MATER AL 5D BE BE.ECTED PO (T8 panONEDS,
Racmensoves | —exomoms — —renuen — TR /s 0 SBLITY O PLL T8 8T
os0 somvcn —=wce  — —rone  — ) 1 CBCOUGHS TREES SmkLl BE Mretase 3 1T £ PR
imrveas =rrm, e, € OTER N TRERS MisLL BE Meretant O 07 TALL
UewTrore oo Oy

MOSHER
ARCHITECTS, P.C.
3508 7TH NORTH STREET BUITE W

LIVERPOOL LY. 15088 [P) (37 420-8677

PROPOSED LAWMAN HEADQUARTERS
CORPORATE PARK WATERTOWN, N.Y.

LOT-10 JEFFERSON COUNTY

g
| 1 \
Lo :
[ \
[ l ! 2 N i iGFia
| | e = : 10.90 ACRES
[ | T
o ] : | b | sm2eTeTs ses
4 — cop sTomase. cocnere P | | <o sromase
£ [ - 10 Lor -
3 ] bock 421 Acres | | 5 { 459 ACRES oex i
_— - 4 5 k l ArTasns ract - i 4 .
i ] C G2 j‘—““""..,_ | | cones _/t 25 ; ]
1 3 S e | | L ; 4 3l
— PR 3 3 : i z
] H ’%'5 ‘,‘:_‘—: : gl || EE:" & %:g";:g;‘;nj'ulma o \:' -
S — “malivrdeTurine T T o S SR % 5 | ?J \—_
245 %eRes gs e g AN EEZ | B %g e e \ AWMAN
L= -- & ® N Grour
= < sk , ~ 1 N S
— ] et : i
EN Sl § i DESIGN
5 g | —— o U g . BUILD
Ay =y N
— | ® §of 4/l ED ¢ INNOVATIONS
\ FOUS R 1 SO = o = to N M —
____ P sheses s L S
e e o Rt R o __——E‘Zn?,_l__ M
o, s
(] “SHH ke q
i‘i
- CORT,200/LITTLE TREE DRIVE 41 | ——— . e ——
__—.=xn_.___n____nﬂ ‘A'E_._____-_____.-- ol N . . S S ——_——— e ———— T T -.
EE—.—— el - e = T T * Fra= LOT 10 &
—_ ; = o JEFFERSON CTY. &=
CORP. PARK  |om masn
ey WATERTOWN |y
VA OVERALL SITE PLAN[LOT-10-1E® OVERALL
T T SITE FLAN
& LOT 10-11 L-100

-18-




B\ o1 2
| YIHSOW m mm : m m
XN NMOLEILVM Sdvd LVI0dd00 S ) S
ZINNOD NOSYIIdAr 0I-101 S “ m m m
SYALAVIOAVIH NVINMV1 Q3S0d0¥d Ala

§
4 1L
w...w
[} o
1
[ 1]
3 +
: e
Q
g 0
g (B
E 5d 0
¥ _ 4
1
1
i </l
L]
i !
1
§
mmu o_ﬂ. n_o
o _
| i |
HEE i I
el i e i
12 4
¥
ils
HHE !

Xax

Label
DSOK-ME BLS
XSPW.B E

Luminaira Schedule

= OSOK Fistures mounied with no B ot 205 alg
= XSPW Firtutws mouniad on the well o 16 sl

X n————n————n
=

I'Y _
/ _ &
o ! __“m“
R
] it
wif iyl
wm:m m
ﬁmm mw
mummm n.m"_
Pl
W wwm__m.m*u
jigiaaeg
ol
= __hh_ m‘mm
Sl eedtete (310
RTIEEL
}
m:mmmﬁm mm .
axmwwmw - a

-19-




® _ S ©) 0]
VPR oo o —— PO S,
J 1 1 1 i v :
Ot - . >
H |2
; coLD sTorASE g?é’; f l:l:l] g %
i BE
| == | ||%22
N
| | I RINIEEER
‘ u I < 7 o £l
© Leveler Z E D: Eg
" " = YT § 8 < V)EEE
u [ SEEE
i | — S|l el =g
I, L mlEE ‘CEN
5l ¢ %
MANUPACTURING ”§§ CRANE BAY I§§ 2 8 6
® s s — HB,E_ ] B - S — ARl O
| pma
3
====
,,, | |
&
) H H T/\4
@ — —_— S N D S R S S e I e [AWMAN
” ” P e [NGROUF
oll— [ | DESIGN
) ) e BUILD
! = INNOVATIONS
@?_a_ R Lmi S —
| Ty =
LSk R0 crv. [
N1 - - SR P e
@ LoT-10 FLoou;:_:_@ E;zpw A-100

-20-




o }
B
- A e %
=T = = @]
:f‘ “.{ =y ——— = o~
<| z| &
= = — —-- Bl 5l E
—— —— —SEES O <
= Z| O 2| = ot
e TR 7 - T Vg — ” & Uk
\""_"y SCALE: 5/33721-0" % ﬁ D: Eg
EEE
ol H & “EE
gl S =,
- ol 8
i [ 5 & & ﬂ
&l 3l o

TTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTT
=

@

MGROUP

Yous ToraL ConsTRUCTION SaLUON

DESIGN
BUILD
INNOVATIONS

| DATE

mamﬁ;s -309)

-21-




PROPOSED FACILITY

LOT-11 JEFFERSON COUNTY CORPORATE PARK

WATERTOWN, N.Y.

INDEX OF DRAWINGS:
c-1 COVER SHEET

SITE
L-100 OVERALL SITE PLAN
L-102 LOT 11 SITE PLAN

ARCHITECTURAL

A-101 SCHEMATIC FLOOR PLAN LOT 11
A-301 SCHEMATIC EXTERIOR ELEVATIONS LOT 11

DEVELOPED BY: DESIGNED & BUILT BY:
_ DESIGN
/ \ THE BUILD
AWMAN INNOVATIONS
Grour

IN CONJUNCTION WITH:
% MOSHER
ARCHITECTS. P.C.
£\

MOSHER

ARCHITECTS. P.C.

7008 7TH MORTH BTREET SUITE WA
LIVERPOOL Y. 13088 [P) O1) 420-8a77

A

PROPOSED LAWMAN HEADQUARTERS
CORPORATE PARK WATERTOWN., N.Y.

LOT-10 JEFFERSON COUNTY

THE
T/\“lnvwwmv

Grour

Your Tora Coms 1mucnion Sowsnon

DESIGIN
BUILD
INNOVATIONS

—
o —

-




LESEND GENERAL NOTES ‘
Taarme e, u s
LAPAVEL FeT § mCONBAN L9.FC LKD) B VEYDRS, DATED 27102033
Eoaon, an— —an E— D AL DwTAzeD wnss sax o REcEE ToROL 4 062D
STORM PoR TR CPT = R eT == NLERS ROTED OneRnes
e s g oy 3 T/ B0 re o oo w0 BBy e 5
.
e = = = =
4 penrLaNe waTE NOTES

maosmva | —xpamm — —renm — a dou
macmca s | —momoma — —renver —— ATTRCT /e 400 SBLITY TO FLL T8 8T
ess sounce —mire  — —rens  — ) 1N CECOUGLS TREES Budel, B Mresase 2 1T EAFTR 4
urveas =rrm, renrwg, . €1 TR e TREES iaL BE brerasa Om o TALL K
LeeT iz pe=ry pacres) v

= = 7

MOSHER

ARCHITECTS. P.C.

1038 7TH NOATH STREET BUITE W,
LIVERPOOL Y. 13088 [F) (1) 420-0677

e

LOT-11 JEFFERSON COUNTY
CORPORATE PARK WATERTOWN, N.Y.

PROPOSED FACILITY

Lori2

e ! .%EAHHFAL?VRIN‘ £ “"
|| T -\ N/ \ 1
¥ - -.\ AWMAN

NI OVERALL
o ovemaLL

K
| iﬁg ;
e

1]
N

MamvEdcTURING N
PPE 400.0°

Ridge

Sv
3
iy
3
i
4
S
\® F!ug
5
LEHY
[13]

Grour
i T N

‘\ DESIGN
'-\ BUILD
'\

[

- — -

INNOVATIONS

=

NG | noTES DATE

| _ —_——ak
115 52"
T oriommviaron Bemace ()] ;’§
- e - ——
n —x " n 1 L e s -
o = o et TR LOT 1 =
Pa————el JEFFERSON CTY. [acs
pjats CORP. PARK |om oo
: e WATFRTOWN
VAR OVERALL SITE PLAN[LOT-10-11]® OVERALL
e SR SITE PLAN
= LOoT 10-11 L-100
=

5%




LEGEND SENERAL NOTES
Tane oo
LAPAve, TR 4 HCONEAR L P oo BAVETONS, DATED 14 513
contan P p— [ E— AL DaTneeD ansas st 1O EcEE TovRoL 4 0D
TR~ PR —\ PP e — N T - SLESS ROTED Onanree
i oo g s oy LATER B st ot 0 00 BT P
sacrimy e P, —reneee =
scre s

meroeseana | —opamm — By, = -
macmcn wmvics | —mxomomE — —anusx —— s o0 sacre 1O P e o
PR —ire  — —rene ) KN CREOUC e ML BE revas 2 1 T CALPBR
pghopne; vy v, & O™ e TR B, B et 07 8 Tk
ueerran e egren

ZONNG NOTES
U Tt Cummer sowme cLsencaTOn e
U T ErPIRAR CANTY CORPORATE PAdk cOBUNTE

ORI TN S APPLE TO b BT

Luminairs Schedude

Symbol | TAG | Ladel Amangement [ Lum, Warts Part Numbar

3 |- OSQK-ME BLS ROTATED 1.000 0s0-

4 |»~ XSPW-B 2ME. SINGLE 2020 XSPALB-WAL-ZME-AL-STK-cx-xx
nd are Dark Sky Comphant
Addtional Equi
0S0-DAc Direct arm mounts
OSOBLEMR Backight ehields

0XCX 46" alg bese)

= OSQK Fitures mounted wih no 2 sl 20.5 afg
44 XSPW Fistures mounisd on the wall af 18 afg

Y

G
S
27

2ul

/7|

o |l
Yt 7 7.0
/ l’m"'ﬁ'y’f?‘/,
e D500

22NN

0,2,
(S

MOSHER
ARCHITECTS, P.C.
038 7T NORTH STREET BUTTE W

LIVERPOOL KY. 19088 [P] (30 420-0077

LOT-11 JEFFERSON COUNTY
CORPORATE PARK WATERTOWN, N.Y.

PROPOSED FACILITY

THE

AWMAN

Grour

Youm Tora, Consaucnion Sauumon

DESIGN
BUILD
INNOVATIONS

LoT-1

SITE PLAN

RE TS

T o]
=== =
JEFFERSON CTY. [nem
CORP. PARK e
WATERTOWN

LoT 1

SITE PLAN L"1 O 2

[¥—T)

-24-




_ e _ ® ®
1 = f = | — >
VOoxe/O Z
:': %”6;; COLD STORAGE z.
IDIL ) : z
BO' x 80" i Z‘ﬁ" 8
CONE. PAD il ﬁ %
Z| &
[:ﬁlf T e ll “ § = §
5. u | | Bl B
RETANNG WAL ol no - S d ~ :I:S i
H u ol ol = e
i ; SEEEE
e 222 | : Ll Bl TSk
. T I R
4 1 * - 2 2| &
g§‘ CRANE BAY gé MANUFACTURNG ; 8 : 2 %é'!
N gT T . 9l 8
| s
f E=== BN
I I |
b
_ ” e
7 : - - T L i R S AWMAN
pﬁ'&ﬁ-’wE ove, H ” ) [/\\Gnour
. U N . — DESIGN
= INNOVATIONS
Gk :
T
w= po— - -t - WATERTOWN _[====
@ LoT-1 FLOO:J,';,,:}E.@ E;;PLAN A1

95




P i >‘
&
0 Zz
L) =
= = B [ o e @)
— E >
—— == 2
= :8 g
> O L Uls
EEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEE e
SCALE: 5/221-0" E % FM‘ E E Eg
i ;.<IE Eé wl| == E;‘
= el =l T g
T o gl & s aE
III!I ﬂl lﬂmll P =, 8l = &
‘ LT vy & ) By
Sout i t IIIIIIIIIIH . :. &l Al O

TTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTT

®

BUILD

-26-




EASEMENT

THIS INDENTURE, made the ____ day of 2022, between JEFFERSON
COUNTY INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY, party of the first part, hereinafter
designated the Grantor, and the TOWN OF WATERTOWN, a municipal corporation of the
State of New York, having an address of 22867 Co. Rt. 67, Watertown, New York 13601, on
behalf of Town of Watertown Water District No. 1 Extension, collectively, party of the second
part, hereinafter designated the Grantee:

WITNESSETH, that the Grantor, in consideration of ONE DOLLAR ($1.00) lawful
money of the United States, the receipt of which is hereby acknowledged, and other good and
valuable consideration, paid by the Grantee, does hereby grant and release unto the Grantee,
its successors and assigns, forever, a Permanent and Perpetual Easement to be exercised in,
on, over, under, through, and across the hereinafter described property for the purpose of
constructing, laying, installing, replacing, relocating, operating, maintaining, cleaning,
repairing, and removing water lines, and appurtenances of whatever type or material, so as
to enable the transmission of potable water through any line now on, under, or through said
property or any line or lines to be hereafter placed upon, under, or through said property, as
the Grantee may now or shall from time to time hereafter deem necessary for the
transmission of potable water, which said property is described as follows:

ALL THAT TRACT OR PARCEL OF LAND situate in the Town of Watertown,
County of Jefferson, and State of New York being a strip or strips of land each twenty
feet (20') in width, the center line or center lines of which being the approximate
center line or approximate center lines of the certain water lines or pipelines or
appurtenances within tax parcel number 73.20-1-2.11 as conveyed by Walter A.
Minaert to Jefferson County Industrial Development Agency, by deed recorded in the
Jefferson County Clerk’s Office in Liber 1406 of Deeds at Page 301 on July 1, 1994 as
shown on the plans prepared by BCA Architects & Engineers named Town of

Watertown Water District No. 1 Extension.

During and for the purpose of the construction of the water pipeline or pipelines,
lateral pipeline or pipelines or appurtenances, the Grantee shall have the right to clear and
use additional land (Temporary Easement), said Temporary Easements shall be a maximum
of 10 feet in width on each side of the Permanent Easement. The grant of the Temporary
Easement shall terminate upon final completion of construction of the facilities and surface

restoration.

-27-



The Grantee or its duly authorized representative or representatives shall also have
the right at any time to extend lateral pipelines and appurtenances to all buildings now or
hereafter constructed upon lots abutting said Easement strip.

The Grantee or its duly authorized representative or representatives shall have the
right at any time to cut roots or remove trees and vegetation or other obstructions on or
adjacent to said above described premises which in the opinion of the Grantee may be likely
to interfere with or prevent the free and unrestricted use and exercise of the Permanent
Easement and the rights hereinabove described.

The Grantee shall, after the completion of initial construction or any other work
required to be done in connection with the granting of these Easements, restore the surface
of, the surrounding ground to substantially its former condition except for such trees or
shrubs as have to be cut or removed in connection with the work of installing the sewer

pipelines, and appurtenances.

Reserving, however, to the Grantor of the above described property and its
successors in interest, the right and privilege of using such property, except for the erection
of buildings or other structures over said line or lines, provided the exercise of such right
and privilege does not interfere or is not likely to interfere with or prevent the free and
unrestricted use and exercise of the Permanent Easement and rights hereinabove described.

It being the intent to describe a Permanent Easement and a Temporary Easement
across the parcel of land conveyed by Walter A. Minaert to Jefferson County Industrial
Development Agency, by deed recorded in the Jefferson County Clerk’s Office in Liber 1406
of Deeds at Page 301 on July 1, 1994. It is the intention of the parties hereto that the rights
and privileges granted by this Easement shall be exercised with reference to the water
pipelines and appurtenances as they are to be installed and as they are to be located on the
“Record” drawings to be filed in the Jefferson County Clerk’s Office.

The Grantee or its duly authorized representative or representatives shall have the

_ right atany time of ingress or egress, and regress, over and upon the premises of the Grantor,
its successors and/or assigns into and from the aforesaid premises for the purposes
hereinbefore or hereinafter set forth with vehicles or machinery of any kind or on foot
without becoming or being liable for trespass or for any damage whatsoever, except damage

to agricultural crops or fences.

TO HAVE AND TO HOLD the rights hereby granted unto the Grantee, its successors,
and assigns forever; and the said Grantor hereby covenant as follows:

FIRST:That the Grantee shall quietly enjoy the rights hereby granted.

SECOND: That the Grantor, its successors and/or assigns will forever WARRANT
the title to the rights hereby granted.

-28-



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Grantor has hereunto caused these premises to be
signed by its duly authorized representatives the day and year first above written.

Jefferson County Industrial

Development Agency
Witness By:
STATE OF )
)ss:
COUNTY OF )

On the ___day of 2022, before me, the undersigned, personally appeared,
personally know to me or proved to me on the basis of satisfactory
evidence to be the individual(s) whose name is/are subscribed to the within instrument
and acknowledge to me that he/she executed the same in his/her capacity, and that by
his/her signature on the instrument, the individual(s), or the person upon behalf of which
the individual(s) acted, executed the instrument.

Notary Public

CERTIFICATE OF SUBSCRIBING WITNESS

STATE OF NEW YORK )

)SS:
COUNTYOF __ )
On the ___ day of in the year before me, the undersigned, a Notary

Public in and for said State, personally appeared , the subscribing
witness to the foregoing instrument with whom I am personally acquainted, who, being by
me duly sworn, did depose and say that he/she/they reside(s) in the Town of Watertown;
that he/she/they know(s) to be the individual described in and
who executed the foregoing instrument; that said subscribing witness was present and saw

execute the same; and that said witness at the same time

subscribed his/her/their name(s) as a witness thereto.

Notary Public

-29.-



TAX PARCEL NO.
73.20-1-2.11
Jeff Co Ind Dev Agency

TAX PARCEL NO.
73.20-1-2.6

NORTHERN DEVELOPERS LLC

LEGEND

™ 7 " " | 10' CONSTRUCTION EASEMENT

—— — — —— TAXPARCEL LINE | | 20" PERMANENT EASEMENT

ROADWAY MARGIN _
- NEW WATER MAIN

“*FOR REFERENCE ONLY**
A0



Date

AU

Ly

LA
o3
iny
i)
By
S

Town of Watertown
Outer Arsenal & 12F Water System Improvements Project

To: Property Owners of Parcels for which temporary construction and permanent
maintenance easements are required.

The Town has undertaken an improvements project in Water District No. | to replace one of its
oldest sections of the existing water distribution system. The Town has coordinated with the
Department of Health (DOH) and received their approval of the final design. Bid documents are
being finalized and this project will soon be ready to receive bids. Construction is projected to
begin during summer of 2023.

This project includes the replacement of water main along portions NYS Route 12F and County
Route 196. During the design it was determined that portions of the system would need to be
constructed outside the road Right-of-Way (ROW) and on privately-owned property where
easements currently do. not exist to avoid interference with other utilities and incorporating low
construction costs. For these locations a temporary 40-foot-wide construction easement and
permeant 20-foot-wide maintenance easement will be required to allow initial construction and
future maintenance, respectively, of the System. In some areas only temporary construction
easements are needed to allow for the installation of the new System components. If you are
receiving this letter, an easement for your property is being requested for the reasons

described above.

A copy of the easement language for your property has been included with this mailing for your
review. A map showing the proposed System components to be located on your propetrty, as well
as the proposed easement limit, is also included for reference only. Please note that the location
of the components could change slightly during construction. If major changes are needed during
construction, a new easement will be required. Please note that all persons listed as an owner on
the deed for the property are each required to sign. If you find the attached easement acceptable
without further review or question, you may sign the easement before a notary public. A notary
public is available through the Town clerk’s office. Note that some local banks also have notary
publics as well. The signed and notarized easements can be dropped off at the Town clerk’s office,
22867 County Route 67, Watertown, New York 13601 or mailed to BCA Architects & Engineers,
327 Mullin Street, Watertown, New York 13601, attention to Mr. Garrett Fields. A self-
addressed, stamped envelope has been provided for your convenience. Please note that the
project cannot be advertised for construction bids until all necessary easements are
obtained. It is important to note that the sooner all easements are acquired, the quicker the
project can be advertised for construction bids and receive more favorable bid results.

General questions can be directed to the Town of Watertown Supervisor, Mr. Joel Bartlett at

-31-



(315) 782-8248. Technical questions can be directed to BCA Architects & Engineers to Mr.
Garrett Fields at 315-782-8130 ext. 274 (email: gfields @thebegroup.com) or Mr. Michael D Alteri,
.,P E at (315) 782-782-8130 ext. 250 (email: malteri@thebcgroup.com).

Very truly yours, .

Mr. Joel R. Bartlett
Town Supervisor

-32-



Jefferson County Industrial Development Agency
Loan Review Committee Meeting Minutes
August 24,2022

Present: David Converse (Chair), Rob Aliasso
Excused: Kent Burto, Christine Powers, John Jennings

Also Present: David Zembiec, Lyle Eaton, Peggy Sampson, Joy Nuffer, Bill Johnson, KC
Bennett (Sally Port View), Corry Lawler (L2, LLC)
Zoom: Paul Warneck, Stephen Maier, Esq. (Harris Beach), John Rappe and Ivo Tomchev (Wilna

PV, LLC)

I.  Call to Order: Chair Converse called the meeting to order at 8:03 a.m.

II.  Pledge of Allegiance

Sally Port View LLC — A request for a $112,500 RLF for capital improvements to real
estate to be located in Three Mile Bay, NY. This will be a loan participation with the
North Country Alliance (lead agency) for a total project of $8,414,874. Projection of 14
FTEs over three years.

Mr. Bennett provided background on his education and work history which included
military service.

At 8:05 a.m., a motion was made by Mr. Aliasso to convene into executive session to
discuss the personal financials of Mr. Bennett, seconded by Mr. Converse. Committee
Members, Board Members, Staff, Counsel, Matt Siver (DANC/NCA), and Mr. Bennett

remained.

At 8:28 a.m., a motion was made by Mr. Aliasso to leave executive sessidn, seconded by

Mr. Converse.

Mr. Aliasso asked about sewage for the project. Mr. Bennett said that he is putting in a
septic field.

Mr. Bennett indicated that he is working with Watertown Savings Bank to close on the
SBA loan in October. He said that infrastructure work has begun for the underlay before
winter arrives. It was noted that Mr. Bennett already owns the land (60 acres). Mr.
Zembiec said that he would discuss the PILOT application with Mr. Bennett to see if
there is an interest in applying to save on sales tax, mortgage recording and property tax

abatement for the project.

-33-



Jefferson County Industrial Development Agency
Loan Review Committee Meeting Minutes
August 24,2022

III.

The proposed terms as follows: 20-year amortization with a 5-year balloon at a rate of
5% and Interest Only for the first 6 months. Collateral will be a co-proportional second
mortgage position, assignment of rents and leases on all real estate located at 7828 NYS
Route 12E, Three Mile Bay, NY, a co-proportional second lien on all assets of the
business and personal guarantee by Kurtis Bennett. Mr. Siver said that NCA will be
requesting keyman life insurance and approval of all other parties listed in the write up.
Committee members agreed to add the keyman life insurance and the approval of the
North Country Alliance, Tourism Loan Fund, National Grid Grant, NCEDF REDC-
Bridge Loan and WSB 7a Loan.

A motion was made by Mr. Aliasso to move the recommendatlons to the full board of
directors, seconded by Mr. Converse.

Mr. Bennett and Mr. Siver left the meeting at 8:41 a.m.
Other/Unfinished Business

1. OYA Ellisburg Assignment — Attorney Maier said there is a request to authorize the
transfer of the controlling interests in OYA Ellisburg Solar to OYA Solar
Construction Holdings 2, LLC (to be formed upon approval). He indicated that the
PILOT would close shortly thereafter. He said that a resolution will be prepared for
the board meeting.

2. Wilna PV, LLC — A request for a PILOT for a 3 MWac solar PV power plant to be
located at 42459 County Route 41, Natural Bridge, NY.

Mr. Tomchev said development started in 2020. He said there is 61 acres and that
21.21 acres will be disturbed for the project. Mr. Zembiec pointed out that they are
requesting sales tax abatement, unlike other solar projects that we approved. Mr.
Rappe said that certain items such as fencing and roads are not tax exempt at the state
level. Mr. Aliasso asked staff to get clarity on what is taxable or not.

Mr. Eaton said that he needs to get a good handle on the final assessment.
Mr. Aliasso asked if the project will have a community adder. Mr. Rappe said no and
indicated that they are no longer eligible. Instead they may be eligible for an

inclusive community adder if they achieve 60% to 80% residential customers.

A motion was made by Mr. Aliasso to move the request to the full board of directors,
seconded by Mr. Converse. All in favor.

Mr. Rappe and Mr. Tomchev left the meeting at 8:56 a.m.

2
-34-



Jefferson County Industrial Development Agency
Loan Review Committee Meeting Minutes
August 24, 2022

IV.

3. L2, LLC - A request for a PILOT to construct a 30,000 square foot office and
manufacturing facility for consolidation of all operations on Lot 10 in the corporate
park.

Mr. Lawler said that they currently have three locations for the manufacturing of their
sheet metal. He said they have 100+ employees on the construction side and the
business includes electrical, plumbing and mechanical. He said that he and Mike
Lundy have created an LLC together (Design Build Innovations) to prefab walls but
indicated that they don’t have enough room/power in their space in Theresa that they
are leasing. He said that they decided to consolidate all locations on the property Mr.
Lundy has in the Corporate Park because it seems to be a good fit and allows them to
stay local. He said the plan is to develop both lots 10 and 11 (spec building). Mr.
Zembiec noted that the planning board will vote on the SEQR (for both lots) at their
September meeting. He said the PILOT application being considered is for Lot 10
only and indicated that a new application for Lot 11 would have to be filed if they
decide to build the spec building. Mr. Converse said that both buildings comply with

the covenants.

Mr. Lawler pointed out that there was no way to project the amount of field workers
because it will be based upon the work requested.

A motion was made by Mr. Aliasso to move the request to the full board of directors,
seconded by Mr. Converse. All in favor.

Adjournment: With no further business before the committee, Mr. Aliasso made a
motion to adjourn the meeting, seconded by Mr. Converse. The meeting adjourned at

9:12 a.m.

Respectfully submitted,
€

-35-



JEFFERSON COUNTY INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY
Resolution Number 09.01.2022.01

RESOLUTION FOR AUTHORIZING A
REVOLVING LOAN TO
SALLY PORT VIEW LLC

WHEREAS, A request for a Revolving Loan in the amount of One Hundred Twelve
Thousand Five Hundred Dollars ($112,500) for capital improvements to real estate to be located
in Three Mile Bay, NY. This will be a loan participation with the North Country Alliance (lead
agency) for a total project of approximately $8.4M, and

WHEREAS, Staff reviewed the request and recommends approval of a loan in the
amount of $112,500 amortized for 20 years with a 5-year balloon at a rate of 5%, Interest Only
for the first 6 months. There are 14 FTEs projected over three years. Collateral will be co-
proportional second mortgage position, assignment of rents and leases on all real estate located at
7828 NYS Route 12E, Three Mile Bay, NY 13693, co-proportional second lien on all assets of
the business, and a personal guarantee by Kurtis Bennett. The loan will be contingent upon
keyman life insurance and approval of $112,500 in financing from the North Country Alliance,
and bank financing of $5,000,000 and

WHEREAS, on August 24, 2022, the Loan Review Committee of the Jefferson County
Industrial Development Agency reviewed this request and recommended approval of the loan
and terms to the full Board of Directors, and

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Board of Directors of the Jefferson
County Industrial Development Agency that it herein approves the request for a One Hundred
Twelve Thousand Five Hundred Dollar ($112,500) loan to Sally Port View LLC with all terms
and conditions as set forth in this Resolution, and be it further,

RESOLVED, that the Chairman, Vice Chairman, Secretary and/or Chief Executive
Officer are authorized and directed to execute any and all documents necessary to carry out the
purposes of this Resolution.

This resolution shall take effect immediately.

W. Edward Walldroff
Secretary

-36-



TRANSFORMATIONAL TOURISM FUND

Borrower: Sally Port View LLC

7828 NYS Route 12E, Three Mile Bay, NY 13693

Project Location:
(60.08-1-24.1)

Borrower Address: 21277 Fox Ridge Road, Watertown, NY 13601

Pursuit/WSB SBA 7a Guaranty — Pending-Assumes 25 years with a rate between 6-8%. Underwriter

used 8%.

NCA-Pending-Assumes 20 years at 5%

-37-

Ownership: Kurtis Bennett-100%
'Loan Amount: $250,000.00

Term: 20 years

Rate: ' 1%

Payments: Construction Period Interest Only not to exceed 12
months, monthly principal and interest to term out loan
over 240 months.

Guarantor: Kurtis Bennett

Use of Funds: Capital Improvements to Real Estate

Collateral: Co-proportional second mortgage position and
assignment of rents and leases on all real estate located at
7828 NYS Rt.12E, Three Mile Bay, NY 13693; co-
proportional second lien on all assets of business

Jobs: Existing: 0
Years 1-3:14 FTE

Total Project Costs

Sources of Funds Uses of Funds

Tourism Loan Fund $ 250,000.00 Acquisition of Land $ 625,000.00
NCA $§ 112,500.00 Improvements* $6,207,695.'00
JCIDA $§ 112,500.00 Contingency $ 620,695.00
National Grid Grant $§ 300,000.00 Equipment § 450,000.00
NCEDF $ 300,000.00 Interim Interest $ 295,000.00
REDC-Bridge Loan $1,425,000.00 Professional Fees $ 85,000.00
Pursuit/WSB 7a Loan $5,000,000.00 SBA Guaranty Fee $ 131,484.00
Cash Equity § 914.874.00

Total $8,414,874.00 Total $8,414,874.00



Sally Port View LLC

Page 2

August 2, 2022

JCIDA-Pending-Assumes 20 years at 5%

NCEDF-Pending-Assumes 15 years at %2 WSJ Prime plus 1 set at closing (current WSJ 5.5% as of
8/4/22)

REDC Grant-Pending

National Grid Grant-Pending
Cash Equity-Cash contributed by applicant. Already paid $625,000 cash to acquire property.

*Improvements Budget-Quote provided by Goutremout Brothers Construction as of 7/19/22
o Site Work $1,593,935

e Main Building $2,988,050
e Tower $ 244,711
e Cottages § 481,536
e  Support Building $ 357,000

Total GC Construction Budget  $5,665,232
General Contractor Overhead $ 339,914

| Total GC Payment $6,005,145

National Grid Utility Install $ 202,550

I Total Construction Budget $6,207,695

Description of Project
Sally Port View LLC is requesting $250,000 from the Tourism Fund to build an event center and

cabins on property in the Town of Lyme. Per the tax records, the property is 57.68 acres of which
840x150 is waterfront, 53.71 acres is tillable, and 1.08 acres is residual.

Sally Port View (SPV) is an event campus currently under construction on 1,200 feet of prime Lake
Ontario waterfront and approximately 60 acres of cleared picturesque farmland just outside the village

of Three Mile Bay.

The entire campus will be curated to provide a first-class experience which highlights a modern
12,000 square foot indoor event space with 2 suites, professional kitchen, bar, conference room, and
more. The campus will also include 5 cottages and a network of maintained private trails along the

shoreline and throughout the property.

An architecturally unique site theme of modern minimalization, accompanied by the local farmhouses
& barns, will transform this property into a nationwide destination to:

* Host almost anything - weddings, anniversaries, concerts, graduations, military events,
conferences, sporting events, family unions, weekend getaways, and more

* Lodge guests for accompanying and/or unrelated events

* Create opportunities for local catering, cleaning, part- and/or full-time employment,
transportation, and other symbiotic business development

* Improve the infrastructure of the community and engage locals through discounted and
charitable use of the space for select education and public functions

* Utilize the town’s greatest asset - the lakeshore - for economic development, which is

consistent with the Town of Lyme’s Development Plan.

Mr. Bennett’s future plans are to add an additional 20 cottages to the site.

-38-



Sally Port View LLC
Page 3
August 2, 2022

Products and Services
At its website, www.sallyportview.com, the business touts ‘private waterfront experiences.” The

website is extremely well done. The location is a private 60-acre campus featuring a 12,000 square
foot event center with a divisible main hall, professional kitchen, and a beautiful viewing tower with
stunning panoramas. There is also a wrap-around patio, and 1,200 feet of private waterfront. The

event center will also be set up for conferences with A/V.

Reindering ﬁ‘bm back facing toward water.

The Main Hall & Events Center
Sally Port View Hall will provide more than 4,000 square feet of climate-controlled usable space, with

opportunities to utilize two HD projectors, a speaker system and sound dampening material to provide
a professional setting for presentations.

The Lobby Bar will be 16 feet long and equipped with two full-service stations. The Event Center
kitchen will be built to accommodate the needs of a commercial kitchen. Sally Port View Hall and the

Lobby Bar will be built with accessibility in mind, welcoming all to enjoy the space.

The second-level suites will provide ample time and comfort for wedding party members to get ready
for their big day. The Bride’s Suite will be furnished with three vanity stations and plenty of space for
the bridal party to prepare. Both the Bride and Groom suites can also accommodate overnight guests,
as they will be finished with a queen bed and full bathroom as well.

-39-



Sally Port View LLC
Page 4
August 2, 2022

V ndring oie & Groom Suite -

Also conveniently located on the second floor will be the modern corporate Conference Room —
designed to accommodate in-person participants and remote guests — with large display screens,
teleconferencing technology and full A/V needs to make sure your meeting is efficient and effective.

Rendering of Main Hall

Guest Cottages

Adjacent to the main building, along the shoreline, is the location for the 5 mini-cottages, 160 square
feet each. Rental of the mini-cottages can be coordinated with the booking of a private event. Each
cottage is designed to provide guests with ease and comfort, during all four seasons. The cottages are
furnished with a kitchenette, one queen-sized bed, one queen-sized sleeper sofa, a 3/4 bathroom, heat,
and air conditioning. In addition to the cottages, the main building also offers suites for overnight
accommodations for members of the bridal party or other guests. These will not be available for
nightly or weekly leases but as part of event packages only. As there is a limited number of cottages,
Sallv Port View will partner with other local hotels/motels for lodging including 1000 Islands Harbor
Hotel in Clayton, and Hilton Garden Inn, Fairfield Inn & Suites, Hampton Inn and Holiday Inn
Express & Suites in Watertown, as well as local AirBnBs.

-4(-



Sally Port View LLC
Page 5
August 2, 2022

Cabin Rendering

Support Building
A 2,400 square foot support.facility that will house an office with bathroom, a small laundromat, and a

heated vehicle bay. The laundromat will be available to employees to launder linens and towels to be
utilized in the main building, cottages and suites. The vehicle bay will store all of the facility’s
equipment sued for maintenance of the entire property.

Market
Mr. Bennett wishes to transform Three Mile Bay into a destination location like Sackets Harbor, -

Alexandria Bay and Clayton, to name a few. These communities have traditionally leveraged their
waterfront setting to support local businesses and tourism. The Town of Lyme has not benefited from
this however holds the most waterfront footage than any other northern New York town.

When designing the campus, Mr. Bennett is showcasing the access to infrastructure, water and
wilderness.

When designing the main building he wanted it to be versatile to adapt to many different business
needs. The size of an event can be small or large and the atmosphere will still be cozy and intimate.

The interior design is minimalist and mostly black and white so clients can highlight their décor and
set the tone for their own event. When researching other event spaces in the area, Mr. Bennett noticed
a theme of banquet-style, busy and clashing wallpaper and décor that was dated.

Mr. Bennett wants to highlight the region’s seasons as well. Under Events on the website, the
business is highlighting weddings, offsite events, private events and culinary experiences. The offsite
events include planning experiences like corporate offsite events that could include a conference with
other activities like paddle boarding, bonding around lake-front campfire, fishing, hiking the campus,
sports and outdoor leisure games for team-building, or a private-cooking class. In regard to culinary
experiences, Mr. Bennett plans to partner with professional chefs to provide culinary instruction and
cook-and-serve sources to enable future chefs and amateur cooks to learn and use the 1,500 square
foot full professional kitchen. Finally as part of their experiences they are promoting professionally

guided fishing experiences.

Mr. Bennett is also going to target the military population. Fort Drum is home to 15,000 active duty
soldiers as well as spouses and families. They will look to host military balls and formal events. The

-4]-



Sally Port View LLC

Page 6

August 2, 2022

Commons on Fort Drum is not open. Therefore, there is opportunity to host more activities at this
location. Also, Mr. Bennett is retired military and a veteran himself.

Mr. Bennett will use the website to drive traffic to the event center. In viewing the website, it is well-
designed and professional. He will use social media marketing including Facebook/Instagram and
targeted ads. He also has pro-bono assistance from a social media campaign adviser for both
generating and posting content. He will target the Long Island, NYC, Syracuse, Buffalo, and Northern

New Jersey markets.

In addition to social media, he will target magazines, especially bridal, and bridal shows. He will
work with the 1000 Islands Tourism Council as well as join the local chambers and cross-advertise

with other local businesses like the 1000 Islands Country Club.

While the business focuses on events like weddings, corporate events, private parties and large scale
events, he will also market the center for off-season activities like sled races, ice fishing derbies, and

pop-up restaurants.

Competition
Mr. Bennett provided the following regarding competition. The only other venues directly on Lake

Ontario are:
e Oswego Area-Bay Shore-63 miles away from Sally Port View
e Rochester Area-Arbor Venues-141 miles away from Sally Port View

e Buffalo Area-None

Sally Port View is designed to position itself in the market as peers to two key venues:

e 1000 Islands Harbor Hotel-Pros-largest, nicest hotel on St. Lawrence River; charges minimum
$30k wedding; working with management as a lodging sister property. Cons-no privacy; no
space; no nature, except waterview; cookie-cutter wedding template.

e Tailwater Lodge-Pros: Salmon River waterfront for serious anglers; multiple event rooms and
venue spaces; spa and indoor pool; charges $30k for weddings; popular because it is remote.
Cons: multiple weddings held on same day, minimal privacy; cookie-cutter wedding template.

While there are other smaller facilities in the greater Watertown area, none have all of the amenities
that Sally Port View will offer. In reviewing the application, this project is in-line with Tailwater
Lodge in Altmar (Oswego County) with the exception that Sally Port View does not have on-site
lodging with the exception of the 5 cabins and two suites. The cabins and suites can sleep 24. Mr.
Bennett proposes more cabins in the future. There is no other facility like this in the three-county
region and could be very successful due to its location on the Lake and the many amenities it could -
.provide. Lodging is a concern. Mr. Bennett does note in his business plan that getting back and forth
for those staying out of town may be a challenge. There is a shuttle service, Clarence Henry Coach, in

Watertown that provides shuttle service.

Management
Mr. Kurtis (KC) Bennett graduated from the US Military Academy at West Point in 2003 and served

in the US Army until 2008 having served in Iraq and Afghanistan. He graduated from the Yale School
of Management in 2010 with a MBA. From 2010-2013 he worked for the CIA as an analyst. From
2013-2021 he worked for Palantir Technologies as a Business Development Specialist. In this role he
implemented custom and enterprise software solutions for Fortune 500 companies to leverage their

-42-



Sally Port View LLC

Page 7

August 2, 2022 .

existing data to meet an existential business threat. He was directly responsible for $100+ million in

additional revenue for an international oil & gas firm. He also led teams during sales and operations
within US government, foreign government, commercial and not-for-profit clients.

The core employees of SPV will be focused on marketing, bookings, and maintaining the property.
Mr. Bennett has reached tentative agreement with 2 event management companies to facilitate the
execution of large events upon starting operations. He is working with two event management firms:
Lovebirds Wedding Co. and Lovely Day Event Services. For catering he is working with Litterio’s
Catering and Take Out and Embellished Catering. He has also been receiving assistance from the
Watertown SBDC, Zachary Goutremout with ZRG Fishing, and Ann Marie Angus, General Manager

of 1000 Islands Harbor Hotel.

Financial Review

Year One Year Two Year Three
Sales 1,991,000 2,411,000 3,132,000
Gross Profit 1,991,000 2,411,000 3,132,000
Expenses 963,399 1,259,475 1,405,361
Other Income/(Exp) (405,997) (398,942) (393,190)
EBTDA 621,604 752,583 1,333,449
Add Back:
Depreciation 0 0 0
Interest 383,140 377,788 372,107
(Property Taxes) (107,892) (107,892) (107,892)
Cash for Debt Service 896,852 1,022,479 1,597,664
Tourism Fund - 13,797 13,797 13,797
NCEDF 26,180 26,180 26,180
NCA 8,909 8,909 8,909
JCIDA 8,909 8,909 8,909
Pursuit/ WSB5 463,092 463,092 463,092
Total Debt 520,887 520,887 520,887
Debt Service Coverage 1.72 1.96 ' 3.07
Sales Inc (Dec.) - 21% : 30%
Gross Profit --- --- —
Expenses A8 52 45
Profit Ratio 31 31 43

Tourism Fund-$1,149.74/month
NCEDF-$2,182/month
NCA-$742.45/month
JCIDA-$742.45/month
Pursuit/WSB-$38,591/month .

-43-



Sally Port View LLC

Page 8

August 2, 2022 -

Sales forecast for year one assumes 47 Weddings with an average net revenue of $15,000
totaling $705,000 for the year. Non-Wedding Private Events like corporate and reunions
assume 127 rentals at an average net of $8,000, or $1,016,000 for the year. Nine Large Public
Events (fair, arts & craft shows, carnival, parties, etc.) assumes 9 for the year averaging a net
$30,000 per event, or $270,000 for the year. Monthly usage runs from 16% in January to 63%
in November. The summer months average 61%. Although November is basically a winter
month in the North Country, Mr. Bennett noted that is seems to be a highly popular month for
wedding. He will consider higher pricing in November for weddings as it will be considered
his peak month. The average usage for the year is 50%.
The cabins do not show up on the revenue side as their own profit center as they are considered
part of the event packages and are included in those revenues. Mr. Bennett will not be offering
the cabins to the public for nightly stays.
Revenues are net of direct costs. The amounts shown under revenue are what the applicant
will make off of the events/activities after costs associated with the event. While this was not
shown on the proforma he provided to me, he is tracking COGS for each event/activity. I say
this so that the reader understands that Mr. Bennett understands the cost nature of the business.
Each event will either require the rental of the facility or ticketed admission. In addition to the
core revenue, there are the following additional revenue streams for each event:
o Liquor sales-SPV will own the liquor license and will manage all alcohol sales on the
property.
o Kitchen rental-Only certified caterers and chefs with appropriate licenses will be able to
rent the kitchen facilities with a beginning rate of $350/hour.
o Equipment rental-SPV will also rent out equipment such as tables/chairs, tableware,
linens, and recreational equipment.
Mr. Bennett currently has 1 week-long corporate off-site rental with a signed letter of intent for
2023 at the $45,000 base weekly campus booking for 150 conference attendees. They have
also had multiple wedding booking queries for both summer and winter months. Other
opportunities for income include anniversaries, corporate holiday parties, military balls/unit
dances, 1000 Islands Poker Run, Fishing Expeditions, dance recitals, and yoga classes.
Sales forecast for year 2 increases by 21%. Weddings increase to 53 events, Non-Wedding

* Private Events increase to 172, and Large Public Events increase to 8. Total usage for the year

is 63%.

Sales forecast for year 3 increases by 30% over year two. Weddings increase to 54 events,
Non-Wedding Private Events increase to 180, and Large Public Events increase to 12. Total
usage for the year is 66%.

Breakeven revenue to cover fixed debt including principal and interest in year one is
$1,614,835, for year 2 it is $1,909,208, and for year 3 it is $2,055,023.

The major expense for the business is payroll. Mr. Bennett proposes to pay the owner,
$65/hour, or $135,200 in year one.” He proposes to have 5 full-time employees, at
approximately $40/hour, or $416,000 annually. He proposes to have 4 part-time employees at
about $20/hour, or $62,400 annually. He proposes 2 independent contractors at $41,600
annually. Payroll taxes and benefits total $151,893 in year one. Total payroll in year one is
$807,093. Payroll and Payroll Taxes/ Benefits increase to $1,091,029 in year 2 and $1,231,605
in year 3. Not including independent contractors, Year One reflects 5.5 FTE, by Year Three
they hope to have a total of 11 FTE on staff. They also plan to have an additional 6

independent contractors as well.

-44-



Sally Port View LLC

Page 9
August 2, 2022

e Other major expenses include debt service, commissions and fees totaling $39,820 in year one,
advertising of $18,000 in year one, travel, meals and entertainment of $18,000 in year one, and
insurance of $15,036 in year one. Supplies seem low at $6,000 for year one. Mr. Bennett
increased all expenses by 3% in years two and three. This might be low given current
inflation, however inflation should level off.

e Mr. Bennett is keeping his costs low as each vendor will carry the cost burden. For example,
the caterer will pay a fee to SPV to use the facility but then the caterer will be responsible for
all supplies associated with the event. Mr. Bennett is providing the facility/resource to hold the
event but other vendors will provide the services, with the exception of the bar.

e Mr. Bennett will have staff to maintain the property keeping snow removal, landscaping and
other grounds maintenance down.

e Staff didn’t see where property taxes had been included in the budget. The all in tax for the
Town of Lyme including the Lyme School District and special districts is $18.60206.
Assuming an appraisal of at least $5.8 million, taxes would be around $107,892 annually. For
underwriting purposes, Staff adjusted the cash flow analysis above to reflect this amount being
paid.

Cashflow

e Based upon the projections, there will be sufficient cash flow to repay the permanent debt. In
addition to the permanent debt above, Mr. Bennett will also have a short term loan to bridge
the ESD grant.

¢ Inregard to working capital, Mr. Bennett has already spent $1,487,000 toward this project. His
equity contribution into the project is $914,874 meaning that he will have around $572,126 in
personal cash to put toward working capital. ‘

Balance Sheet
At Closing

Assets

Current 511,484

Fixed 7,903,390

Other 0
Total Assets 8,414,874
Liabilities

Current 98,715

Long Term 5,676,285
Total Liabilities 5,775,000
Equity 2,639,874
Total Liabilities & Equity 8,414,874
Working Capital 413,288
Current Assets 5.2
Debt to Equity 2.19

Cash at closing is to cover closing costs, interim interest and professional fees. .
Current portion of long-term debt includes the current portion on the new loans.
Equity includes cash equity, National Grid grant and REDC grant. REDC grant is ESD funds.

-45-




Sally Port View LLC
Page 10
August 2, 2022
e While there is no working capital identified in the uses of funds, Mr. Bennett has personal

resources to contribute to the project. He will also be taking deposits as well.

Personal Credit:
Mr. Bennett lists assets of $2,269,328 and liabilities of $566,950. His primary assets are liquid assets

of $429,328 and real estate of $1,700,000. This includes the Three Mile Bay property that he paid for
in cash. Liabilities are a short term HELOC on his personal residence and other installment loans for
education. Mr. Bennett has a TransUnion Credit Score of 740 with no derogatory comments. He
shows open balances of $461,001 of which most is for installment loans of $426,033. He lists other

income of $46,062 from Veteran’s Affairs.

Collateral: Co-pfoportional second mortgage on real estate located at 7828 NYS Route 12E, Three
Mile Bay, NY 13693, and a co-proportional second lien on all assets of the business.

During Construction

Cost Discount
Land T $625,000 $625,000
Real Property (70%) $6,207,695  $4,345,387
Equipment (50%) $450.000 $225.000
Collateral Available $7,282,695  $5,195,387
Pursuit/Watertown Savings Bank $5,000,000 $5,000,000
Bridge Loan $1,425,000 $1,425,000
Total Senior Debt , $6.425.000 $6.425.000
Collateral Available-DANC/public lenders $857,695 ($1,229,613)
Tourism Fund/Other public lenders $775,000 $775,000
Loan to Value 90% (63)%
Post Construction

Cost Discount
Land $625,000 $625,000
Real Property (70%) $6,207,695  $4,345,387
Equipment (50%) $450,000 $225.000
Collateral Available $7,282,695  $5,195,387
Pursuit/Watertown Savings Bank $5,000,000  $5,000,000
Total Senior Debt $5.000.000 $5.000,000
Collateral Available-DANC/public lenders $2,282,695  $195,387
Tourism Fund/Other public lenders $775,000 $775,000
Loan to Value 34% 396%

Per the Jefferson County tax records, the market value for the land is $282,979.

_46-



Sally Port View LLC

Page 11

August 2, 2022

DANC/public lenders will require an appraisal with a minimum LTV of $5,775,000 to have at least a

1:1 LTV.

Contingencies:

Cash equity of up to $914,874 demonstrated at closing by the disbursement statement. .
Pursuit/Watertown Savings Bank 7a financing of $5,000,000 plus bridge financing of to cover
ESD grant

JCIDA funding of $112,500

NCA funding of $112,500

NCEDF funding of $300,000

National Grid grant of $300,000

ESD funding of $1,425,000
As completed appraisal with minimum value of at least $5,775,000 to have at leasta1:1 LTV

Labor Peace does not apply as there is fewer than 15 FTE employees

Personal guaranty of Kurtis Bennett
Copies of invoices, and cancelled checks or bank statements

-47-



SUPPLEMENTAL PROJECT AUTHORIZING RESOLUTION
(OYA Ellisburg Solar LLC Project — Assignment Authorization)

A regular meeting of the Jefferson County Industrial Development Agency convened on
Thursday, September 1, 2022 at 8:30 a.m.

The following resolution was duly offered and seconded, to wit:
Resolution No. 09.01.2022.02

RESOLUTION OF THE JEFFERSON COUNTY INDUSTRIAL
DEVELOPMENT AGENCY (THE “AGENCY”) (i) AUTHORIZING AN
ASSIGNMENT REQUEST RECEIVED FROM OYA ELLISBURG SOLAR
LLC (THE “COMPANY”) IN CONNECTION WITH A CERTAIN PROJECT
(AS MORE FULLY DESCRIBED BELOW) TO BE UNDERTAKEN BY THE
AGNECY AND THE COMPANY; AND (ii) AUTHORIZING THE
EXECUTION AND DELIVERY OF DOCUMENTS WITH RESPECT TO

SAME.

WHEREAS, by Title 1 of Article 18-A of the General Municipal Law of the State of
New York, as amended, and Chapter 369 of the Laws of 1971 of the State of New York, as
amended (hereinafter collectively called the “Act”), the JEFFERSON COUNTY
INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY (the “Agency”) was created with the authority
and power to own, lease and sell property for the purpose of, among other things, acquiring,
constructing and equipping industrial, manufacturing and commercial facilities as authorized by
the Act; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to a Project Authorizing Resolution adopted on April 7, 2022 (the
“Project Authorizing Resolution”), the Agency appointed OYA ELLISBURG SOLAR LLC
(the “Company™), as agent of the Agency to undertake a certain Project (the “Project”) consisting
of: (i) the acquisition by the Agency of a leasehold interest in approximately 30 acres of real
property located at 13624 County Route 91 in the Town of Ellisburg, New York (the “Land”, being
more particularly described as a portion of tax parcel No. 112.00-1-26.1); (ii) the planning, design,
construction and operation of a 5MWac PV solar electrical generation system, including panel
foundations, inverters, transformers, interconnect wiring, utility connections, sitework,
landscaping, fencing, security and related improvements (collectively, the “Improvements™); (iii)
the acquisition of and installation in and around the Land and Improvements by the Company of
machinery, equipment, fixtures and other items of tangible personal property (the “Equipment”;
and, collectively with the Land and the Improvements, the “Facility”); and (iv) entering into a
straight lease transaction (within the meaning of subdivision (15) of Section 854 of the Act),
pursuant to which the Agency will retain a leasehold interest in the Facility for a period of time and
sublease such interest in the Facility back to the Company (the “Straight Lease Transaction”); and

WHEREAS, as of the date of the Company’s Application for Financial Assistance (the
“Original Application”), the Original Application was submitted by and through OYA Solar
CDG LLC as the 100% owner of the Company (the “Original Company Parent”), which at the

Paoe 1

-48-



time of application was 100% owned by OYA Solar, NY L.P. (a wholly-owned subsidiary of
OYA Solar US GP Inc.); and

WHEREAS, in connection with the financing of the Project, the Company has advised
that the ownership of the Company will be transferred by the Original Company Parent to OYA
Renewables Construction Holdings 2 LLC, which is a wholly-owned subsidiary of OYA Solar
B1 Intermediate Holdco, which will be owned by Rosewood Energy LLC (the “Financing
Party”) and managed by OYA Solar B1 LLC (the “Manager”, being an affiliate of the Original
Company Parent), with the foregoing restructuring being referred to herein as the “Assignment”;
and '

WHEREAS, the Company has requested the Agency’s approval of the Assignment and
has provided the Agency with an updated ownership chart and Application for Financial
Assistance (the “Updated Application”) and additional background and financial information for
the Agency to review and consider; and

WHEREAS, in furtherance of the foregoing, the Agency desires to (i) authorize the
Assignment subject to the terms and conditions set forth herein, and (ii) the execution and
delivery of certain documents and agreement in furtherance of same, if necessary.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MEMBERS OF THE JEFFERSON
COUNTY INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY AS FOLLOWS:

Section 1. Based upon the representations made by the Company, the Agency hereby
consents to, authorizes and approves the Assignment subject to the terms and conditions set forth
herein. All other approvals contained within the Project Authorizing Resolution shall remain in
full force and effect.

Section 2. The Agency’s consent and approval of the Assignment is subject to
payment by the Company of all costs and fees of the Agency in connection with review,
consideration and authorization of the Assignment.

Section 3. The Chairman, Vice Chairman and/or Chief Executive Officer of the
Agency are hereby authorized, on behalf of the Agency, to execute and deliver any documents
and agreements necessary to effectuate the Assignment, with such changes as shall be approved
by the Chairman, Vice Chairman and/or Chief Executive Officer and counsel to the Agency
upon execution.

Section 4. The officers, employees and agents of the Agency are hereby authorized
and directed for and in the name and on behalf of the Agency to do all acts and things required
and to execute and deliver all such certificates, instruments and documents, to pay all such fees,
charges and expenses and to do all such further acts and things as may be necessary or, in the
opinion of the officer, employee or agent acting, desirable and proper to effect the purposes of
the foregoing resolutions and to cause compliance by the Agency with all of the terms, covenants
and provisions of the documents executed for and on behalf of the Agency.

Paoce 2
-49-



Section 5. These Resolutions shall take effect inmediately upon adoption.

The question of the adoption of the foregoing Resolution was duly put to a vote on roll call,
which resulted as follows:

Yea Nay Absent Abstain

Robert E. Aliasso, Jr.
David J. Converse
John Jennings
William W. Johnson
Lisa L’Huillier

W. Edward Walldroff [
Paul J. Warneck [

1 —
[ WY Y S ) S [ S [
e e—t
e e = e e b
e e
[ I e S N S S|
mrre—rr e
e el ) e e e

The Resolution was thereupon duly adopted.

Paor 3

~50-



STATE OF NEW YORK )
COUNTY OF JEFFERSON ) SS:

I, the undersigned (Acting) Secretary of Jefferson County Industrial Development
Agency, DO HEREBY CERTIFY:

That I have compared the annexed extract of minutes of the meeting of Jefferson County
Industrial Development Agency (the “Agency”), including the resolution contained therein, held
on September 1, 2022, with the original thereof on file in my office, and that the same is a true
and correct copy of the proceedings of the Agency and of such resolution set forth therein and of
the whole of said original insofar as the same related to the subject matters therein referred to.

I FURTHER CERTIFY, that all members of said Agency had due notice of said meeting,
that the meeting was in all respects duly held and that, pursuant to Article 7 of the Public
Officers Law (Open Meetings Law), said meeting was open to the general public, and that public
notice of the time and place of said meeting was duly given in accordance with such Article 7.

I FURTHER CERTIFY, that there was a quorum of the members of the Agency present
throughout said meeting.

I FURTHER CERTIFY, that as of the date hereof, the attached resolution is in full force
and effect and has not been amended, repealed or modified. '

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed the seal of said
Agency this ___ day of ,2022.

W. Edward Walldroff, (Acting) Secretary

[SEAL]

Paoe 4

-51-



S

/r
/

%
L)
)
S
=N

A

il

—~~<_

«O\)Q SOLAR

i
i

4

\

July 27, 2022

Mr. Justin Miller

Harris Beach PLLC

513 Broadway

Saratoga Springs, NY 12866

Jefferson County

Industrial Development Agency
195 Arsenal Street

Watertown, New York 13601

Re: Change of Control for OYA Ellisburg Solar LLC
Dear Mr. Justin Miller and Members of the Board of the Agency,

I am counsel with OYA Solar NY L.P. (“OYA Solar”). OYA Solar is the current indirect holder of 100%
of the membership interests of OYA Ellisburg Solar LLC (“OES”).

As you know on April 7, 2022, Jefferson County Industrial Development Agency (“JCIDA™) voted to
approve the resolution (“Resolution”) attached hereto as Exhibit A authorizing that certain financial
incentives, including but not limited to a PILOT, be granted to OES. That Resolution mandated that in
the event of a transfer of a controlling interest in OES, notification to, and authorization of such transfer,
would be required from the JCIDA. While we have not yet initiated closing of the PILOT, we plan to do
so in the near future as we are expecting to commence construction this year. In anticipation of this, we
are in the process of obtaining financing (“Financing Transaction”) from Greenbacker Renewable Energy
Corporation (“Greenbacker”). The Financing Transaction will require a transfer of the controlling interest
in OES as outlined below and we require authorization of the JCIDA in order to close.

Please accept this correspondence as a formal request to authorize the transfer of the controlling
interests in OES to OYA Solar Construction Holdings 2, LLC (“OSCH2 LLC") which LLC is to be
Jformed upon your approval, as further described below and in the attached Structure Chart.

Background:

A. At the time of the Resolution, 100% of the membership interests of OES were held by OYA Solar
CDG LLC (“OYA”). Which, in turn, I wholly owned by OYA Solar.

OYA Solar Corp.

144 Front Street W, Suite 313
Toronto, Ontario

M5J 2L7 CANADA

T: 416.840.3358
F:416.860.6666

www.oyasolar.com

5.



Financing Transaction:

1. For the purposes of the Financing Transaction with Greenbacker, OYA Solar caused OSCH2
LLC to be formed and then transferred the membership interests it holds in OES (100%) to

OSCH2 LLC.
2. Asrequired by Greenbacker as a condition precedent to the Financing Transaction, OSCH2 LLC

will be owned by a subsidiary OYA Solar B1 Intermediate Holdco LLC (“OYA B1
Intermediate™) which subsidiary will be owned jointly by OYA Solar BI LLC (an OYA affiliate)

and Rosewood Energy LLC (a Greenbacker affiliate).

Please let us know at your earliest convenience what additional information you may need to consider this
request and what procedure you would like us to follow to complete the application for this change.

Thank you in advance for your cooperation.

Very truly yours,

Glenn Frank

Copy: Bernadette Corpuz (OYA Solar, General Counsel); Taymaz Jahani (Chief Operating Officer, OYA
Solar)

-4



INITIAL PROJECT RESOLUTION
(Wilna PV, LLC Project)

A regular meeting of the Jefferson County Industrial Development Agency convened on
Thursday September 1, 2022 at 8:30 a.m.

The following resolution was duly offered and seconded, to wit:
Resolution No. 09.01.2022.03

RESOLUTION OF THE JEFFERSON COUNTY INDUSTRIAL
DEVELOPMENT AGENCY (i) ACCEPTING AN APPLICATION
SUBMITTED BY WILNA PV, LLC WITH RESPECT TO A CERTAIN
PROJECT (AS DESCRIBED BELOW); (ii) AUTHORIZING THE
SCHEDULING AND CONDUCT OF A PUBLIC HEARING WITH RESPECT
TO THE PROIJECT; (iii) DESCRIBING THE FORMS OF FINANCIAL
ASSISTANCE BEING CONTEMPLATED BY THE AGENCY; (iv)
ADOPTING  FINDINGS WITH RESPECT TO THE STATE
ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY REVIEW ACT (“SEQRA”); AND (v)
AUTHORIZING THE NEGOTIATION OF CERTAIN AGREEMENTS
RELATING TO THE PROJECT.

WHEREAS, by Title 1 of Article 18-A of the General Municipal Law of the State of
New York, as amended, and Chapter 369 of the Laws of 1971 of the State of New York, as
amended (hereinafter collectively called the “Act”), the JEFFERSON COUNTY
INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY (the “Agency”) was created with the authority
and power to own, lease and sell property for the purpose of, among other things, acquiring,
constructing and equipping industrial, manufacturing and commercial facilities as authorized by
the Act; and

WHEREAS, WILNA PV, LLC, for itself and/or for an entity or entities to be formed
(collectively, the “Company”), has submitted an application to the Agency requesting the
Agency’s assistance with a certain project (the “Project”) consisting of: (i) the acquisition by the
Agency of a leasehold interest in approximately 21.21 acres of real property located at County
Route 41 in the Town of Wilna, New York (the “Land”, being more particularly described as a
portion of tax parcel No. 68.00-1-40.1); (ii) the planning, design, construction and operation of
(a) a 3MWac PV solar electrical generation system, including panel foundations, inverters,
transformers, interconnect wiring, utility connections, sitework, landscaping, fencing, security
and related improvements (collectively, the “Improvements™); (iii) the acquisition of and
installation in and around the Land and Improvements by the Company of machinery,
equipment, fixtures and other items of tangible personal property (the “Equipment”; and,
collectively with the Land and the Improvements, the “Facility”); and (iv) entering into a straight
lease transaction (within the meaning of subdivision (15) of Section 854 of the Act), pursuant to
which the Agency will retain a leasehold interest in the Facility for a period of time and sublease
such interest in the Facility back to the Company (the “Straight Lease Transaction”); and

Page 1
-54-



WHEREAS, the Agency is contemplating providing financial assistance to the Company
with respect to the Project (collectively, the “Financial Assistance™) in the form of: (A) mortgage
recording tax exemption for project financing; and (B) a partial real property tax abatement
through a payment-in-lieu-of-tax agreement (the “PILOT Agreement”), pursuant to which the
Company would make payments in lieu of real property taxes to the Agency for the benefit of
each affected tax jurisdiction (the “Affected Tax Jurisdictions™); and

WHEREAS, pursuant to and in accordance with Section 859-a of the Act, the Agency
desires to schedule and conduct a public hearing (the “Public Hearing™) relating to the Project
and the proposed Financial Assistance; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to the New York State Environmental Quality Review Act, Article
8 of the Environmental Conservation Law and the regulations adopted pursuant thereto at 6
NYCRR Part 617, as amended (collectively referred to as “SEQRA”), the Agency must satisfy
the applicable requirements set forth in SEQRA, as necessary, prior to making a final
determination whether to undertake the Project; and

WHEREAS, the Town of Wilna Planning Board (the “Planning Board”), acting as “lead
agency” (as such term is defined under SEQRA), previously reviewed the Project pursuant to -
SEQRA and issued a “negative declaration” (as such term is defined under SEQRA) with respect
to the Project (the “Negative Declaration”, a copy of which, along with related Environmental
Assessment Form, or “EAF”), is attached hereto as Exhibit A); and

WHEREAS, the Agency desires to (i) accept the Application, (ii) authorize the
scheduling and conduct of a public hearing pursuant to and in accordance with the Act, and (iii)
negotiate, but not enter into an Agent and Financial Assistance and Project Agreement (the
“Agent Agreement”), a Lease Agreement (the “Lease Agreement”), a Leaseback Agreement (the
“Leaseback Agreement”), a Payment-in-Lieu-of-Tax Agreement (the “PILOT Agreement”), and
related documents with the Company.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MEMBERS OF THE JEFFERSON
COUNTY INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY AS FOLLOWS:

Section 1. The Company has presented an Application in a form acceptable to the
Agency. Based upon the representations made by the Company to the Agency in the Company’s
Application, the Agency hereby finds and determines that:

(A) By virtue of the Act, the Agency has been vested with all powers necessary and
convenient to carry out and effectuate the purposes and provisions of the Act and to exercise all
powers granted to it under the Act; and

(B)  The Agency has the authority to take the actions contemplated herein under the
Act; and

(C)  The action to be taken by the Agency will induce the Company to develop the
Project, thereby creating significant employment opportunities and critical investment in

Page 2
-55-



Jefferson County, New York, and otherwise furthering the purposes of the Agency as set forth in
the Act; and

(D)  The Project will not result in the removal of a civic, commercial, industrial, or
manufacturing plant of the Company or any other proposed occupant of the Project from one
area of the State of New York (the “State”) to another area of the State or result in the
abandonment of one or more plants or facilities of the Company or any other proposed occupant
of the Project located within the State; and the Agency hereby finds that, based on the
Company’s application, to the extent occupants are relocating from one plant or facility to
another, the Project is reasonably necessary to discourage the Project occupants from removing
such other plant or facility to a location outside the State and/or is reasonably necessary to
preserve the competitive position of the Project occupants in their respective industries; and

(E) Based upon a review of the Application, EAF and the Negative Declaration
submitted to the Agency, the Agency hereby:

6)) consents to and affirms the status of the Planning Board as Lead Agency
for review of the Project, within the meaning of, and for all purposes of complying with
SEQRA; and

(ii)  ratifies the proceedings undertaken by the Planning Board pursuant to
SEQRA with respect to the construction and equipping of the Project pursuant to
SEQRA, including the Negative Declaration; and

(iii) Based upon the review by the Agency of the EAF, Negative Declaration
and related documents delivered by the Company to the Agency and other
representations made by the Company to the Agency in connection with the Project, the
Agency hereby finds that (a) the Project will result in no major impacts and, therefore, is
one which may not cause significant damage to the environment; (b) the Project will not
have a “significant effect on the environment” (as such quoted term is defined under
SEQRA); and (c) no “environmental impact statement” (as such quoted term is defined
under SEQRA) need be prepared for this action. This determination constitutes a
“negative declaration” (as such quoted terms are defined under SEQRA) for purposes of
SEQRA.

Section 2. The proposed financial assistance being contemplated by the Agency
includes (i) mortgage recording tax exemption for project financing and (ii) a partial real
property tax abatement through the execution of an agreement with the Agency regarding
payments in lieu of real property taxes to be made for the benefit of the Affected Tax

Jurisdictions.

Section 3. The Chairman, Vice Chairman, and/or the Chief Executive Officer of the
Agency are hereby authorized, on behalf of the Agency, to negotiate the terms of the Agent
Agreement, Lease Agreement, Leaseback Agreement, PILOT Agreement, and related
documents; provided, the provisions of the rental payments under the Leaseback Agreement
include payments of all costs incurred by the Agency arising out of or related to the Project and

Page 3
-56-



indemnification of the Agency by the Company for actions taken by the Company and/or claims
arising out of or related to the Project.

Section 4. The Agency hereby authorizes the scheduling and conduct a public
hearing in compliance with the Act.

Section 5. Harris Beach PLLC, as General and Transaction Counsel for the Agency,
is hereby authorized to work with counsel to the Company and others to prepare for submission
to the Agency of all documents necessary to effect the foregoing authorizations.

Section 6. The officers, employees and agents of the Agency are hereby authorized
and directed for and in the name and on behalf of the Agency to do all acts and things required
and to execute and deliver all such certificates, instruments and documents, to pay all such fees,
charges and expenses and to do all such further acts and things as may be necessary or, in the
opinion of the officer, employee or agent acting, desirable and proper to effect the purposes of
the foregoing resolutions and to cause compliance by the Agency with all of the terms, covenants
and provisions of the documents executed for and on behalf of the Agency.

Section 7. These Resolutions shall take effect immediately.

The question of the adoption of the foregoing Resolution was duly put to a vote on roll
call, which resulted as follows:

Yea Nay ~ Absent Abstain

Robert E. Aliasso, Jr.
David J. Converse
John Jennings
William W. Johnson
Lisa L’Huillier

W. Edward Walldroff [
Paul J. Warneck [

—r—r—r—

et e e e e e
1 e ) ——
e e e e e g
/e
e e e e e
N — — — ——
e e ) e bl e Ly

The Resolution was thereupon duly adopted.

.Page 4
57 =



STATE OF NEW YORK )
COUNTY OF JEFFERSON ) SS:

I, the undersigned (Acting) Secretary of Jefferson County Industrial Development
Agency, DO HEREBY CERTIFY:

That I have compared the annexed extract of minutes of the meeting of Jefferson County
Industrial Development Agency (the “Agency”), including the resolution contained therein, held
on September 1, 2022, with the original thereof on-file in my office, and that the same is a true
and correct copy of the proceedings of the Agency and of such resolution set forth therein and of
the whole of said original insofar as the same related to the subject matters therein referred to.

I FURTHER CERTIFY, that all members of said Agency had due notice of said meeting,
that the meeting was in all respects duly held and that, pursuant to Article 7 of the Public
Officers Law (Open Meetings Law), said meeting was open to the general public, and that public
notice of the time and place of said meeting was duly given in accordance with such Article 7.

I FURTHER CERTIFY, that there was a quorum of the members of the Agency present
throughout said meeting.

I FURTHER CERTIFY, that as of the date hereof, the attached resolution is in full force
and effect and has not been amended, repealed or modified.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed the seal of said
Agency this ___ day of , 2022.

W. Edward Walldroff, (Acting) Secretary

[SEAL]

Page 5
-58-



EXHIBIT A

SEQRA MATERIALS

Paoe 6
-59-



Full Environmental Assessment Form
Part 1 - Project and Setting

Instructions for Completing Part 1

Part 1 is to be completed by the applicant or project sponsor. Responses become part of the application for approval or funding,
are subject to public review, and may be subject to further verification.

Complete Part 1 based on information currently available. If additional research or investigation would be needed to fully respond to
any item, please answer as thoroughly as possible based on current information; indicate whether missing information does not exist,
or is not reasonably available to the sponsor; and, when possible, generally describe work or studies which would be necessary to
update or fully develop that information.

Applicants/sponsors must complete all items in Sections A & B. In Sections C, D & E, most items contain an initial question that
must be answered either “Yes” or “No”. If the answer to the initial question is “Yes”, complete the sub-questions that follow. If the
answer to the initial question is “No”, proceed to the next question. Section F allows the project sponsor to identify and attach any
additional information. Section G requires the name and signature of the applicant or project sponsor to verify that the information
contained in Part 1is accurate and complete.

A. Project and Applicant/Sponsor Information.

Name of Action or Project:
Wilna Solar Project

Project Location (describe, and attach a general location map):
42459 County Road 41, Natural Bridge, NY 13665

Brief Description of Proposed Action (include purpose or need):

RIC Development, LLC Is propasing the development of a new solar facility — Solar Photovoltaic generation plant. The proposed project will be located on
42459 County Route 41, Natural Bridge, NY 13665. The project, as conceptually designed, will have a nameplate capacity of 3,000 kW AC atthe Point of
Common Coupling with the existing 3-phase electrical distribution system, operated by National Grid — namely a 13.2 kV three phase circuit along County
Route 41. The proposed project Is a standalone ground-mounted system, mounted on a fixed-tilt steel structure. The system will consist of approximately
9,048 solar PV modules and 15 Sungrow SG250HX-US inverters which will be connected to two separate transformers. The total planned DC capacity of
the plant Is 4,750 kW. It Is planned that the project will include a driveway off County Route 41 and an access road leading to the Southeast corner of the
solar array.The parcel consists of a total of 60.95 acres of land. The solar development would occupy approximately 22.8 acres of the parcel.

Name of Applicant/Sponsor: Telephone: 917-463-0421
Vilina VLS E-Mail: jtomchev@ric.energy
Address: g5 proad Street, 28th Floor
City/PO: New York State: \y Zip Code: 15004
Project Contact (if not same as sponsor; give name and title/role): Telephone:
Ivaylo Tomchev E-Mail:
Address:
85 Broad Street, 28th Floor
City/PO: State: Zip Code:
New York NY 10004
Property Owner (if not same as sponsor): Telephone: 917-463-0421
Wayne Schermerhom E-Mail:
Address:
City/PO: State: Zip Code:
Page 1 of 13

-60-




B. Government Approvals
B. Government Approvals, Funding, or Sponsorship. (“Funding” includes grants, loans, tax relief, and any other forms of financial
assistance.)

Government Entity If Yes: Identify Agency and Approval(s) Application Date
Required (Actual or projected)

a. City Counsel, Town Board, [JYesiZINo
or Village Board of Trustees

b. City, Town or Village EYes[JNo | special Use Permit
Planning Board or Commission
c. City, Town or OYeskZINo
Village Zoning Board of Appeals
d. Other local agencies OYes/INo
e. County agencies EAYesCONo  |NYS, General Municipal Law - GMU § 239-m.
County Planning Board referral
f. Regional agencies [CYeskZINo
g. State agencies EZlYes[TJNo |DEC (SWPPP, SPDES, Section 401 Water Quality

Certification), NYSERDA-NY-Sun Program Incent.

EYes[No USACE - WOUS Jurisdictional Determination
USACE - Section 404 NW Permit 51

h. Federal agencies

i. Coastal Resources.
i. Is the project site within a Coastal Area, or the waterfront area of a Designated Inland Waterway? CIYesEiZNo
O YestZINo

ii. Ts the project site located in a community with an approved Local Waterfront Revitalization Program?
O YeslZINo

iii. Is the project site within a Coastal Erosion Hazard Area?

C. Planning and Zoning

C.1. Planning and zoning actions.
Will administrative or legislative adoption, or amendment of a plan, local law, ordinance, rule or regulation be the
only approval(s) which must be granted to enable the proposed action to proceed?

e If Yes, complete sections C, F and G.

e If No, proceed to question C.2 and complete all remaining sections and questions in Part 1

YesiZINo

C.2. Adopted land use plans.

a. Do any municipally- adopted (city, town, village or county) comprehensive land use plan(s) include the site [CYesiZINo

where the proposed action would be located?
If Yes, does the comprehensive plan include specific recommendations for the site where the proposed action OYesCINo
would be located?
b. I's the site of the proposed action within any local or regional special planning district (for example: Greenway;
Brownfield Opportunity Area (BOA); designated State or Federal heritage area; watershed management plan;

or other?)
If Yes, identify the plan(s):

OYeskZINo

c. Is the proposed action located wholly or partially within an area listed in an adopted municipal open space plan, l:IYesEZ]No
or an adopted municipal farmland protection plan?
If Yes, identify the plan(s):

Page 2 of 13

-61-




C.3. Zoning

a. Is the site of the proposed action located in a municipality with an adopted zoning law or ordinance. E21Yes[ONo
If Yes, what is the zoning classification(s) including any applicable overlay district?
AR - Agriculture and Rural Residential

b. Is the use permitted or allowed by a special or conditional use permit? Yes[ONo
c. Is a zoning change requested as part of the proposed action? CYeskZINo
If Yes,

i. What is the proposed new zoning for the site?

C.4. Existing community services.

a. In what school district is the project site located? Carthage Central School District

b. What police or other public protection forces serve the project site?
Jefferson County Sheriff

¢. Which fire protection and emergency medical services serve the project site?
Natural Bridge Volunteer Fire Co.

d. What parks serve the project site?
Various

D. Project Details

D.1. Proposed and Potential Development

a. What is the general nature of the proposed action (e.g., residential, industrial, commercial, recreational; if mixed, include all
components)? Distributed generation solar photo-voltaic power plant development

b. a. Total acreage of the site of the proposed action? 60.95 acres
b. Total acreage to be physically disturbed? 22.8 acres
c. Total acreage (project site and any contiguous properties) owned
or controlled by the applicant or project sponsor? 60.95 acres
c. Is the proposed action an expansion of an existing project or use? ’ [ YesiZINo
i. If Yes, what is the approximate percentage of the proposed expansion and identify the units (e.g., acres, miles, housing units,
square feet)? % Units:
d. Is the proposed action a subdivision, or does it include a subdivision? OYeskINo
If Yes,
i. Purpose or type of subdivision? (e.g., residential, industrial, commercial; if mixed, specify types)
ii. Is a cluster/conservation layout proposed? CdYes[No
iii. Number of lots proposed?
iv. Minimum and maximum proposed lot sizes? Minimum Maximum
e. Will the proposed action be constructed in multiple phases? , [YesiZINo
i. If No, anticipated period of construction: 4 months
ii. If Yes:
e Total number of phases anticipated
e Anticipated commencement date of phase 1 (including demolition) month year
e Anticipated completion date of final phase month ‘year

e  Generally describe connections or relationships among phases, including any contingencies where progress of one phase may
determine timing or duration of future phases:

Page 3 of 13

-62-




CYesiZINo

f. Does the project include new residential uses?
If Yes, show numbers of units proposed.

One Family Two Family Three Family Multiple Family (four or more)
Initial Phase
At completion
of all phases
_g. Does the proposed action include new non-residential construction (including expansions)? K Yes[INo
If Yes,
i. Total number of structures _ Solar panels
ii. Dimensions (in feet) of largest proposed structure: 10-12 height; 6-8 width; and 3-5 length
iii. Approximate extent of building space to be heated or cooled: Not applicable square feet
h. Does the proposed action include construction or other activities that will result in the impoundment of any [YesiZINo
liquids, such as creation of a water supply, reservoir, pond, lake, waste lagoon or other storage?
If Yes, .

i. Purpose of the impoundment:
ii. If a water impoundment, the principal source of the water:

[ Ground water [] Surface water streams [_]Other specify:

iii. If other than water, identify the type of impounded/contained liquids and their source.

iv. Approximate size of the proposed impoundment. Volume: _° million gallons; surface area: acres
v. Dimensions of the proposed dam or impounding structure: height; __length
vi. Construction method/materials for the proposed dam or impounding structure (e.g., earth fill, rock, wood, concrete):

D.2. Project Operations
a. Does the proposed action include any excavation, mining, or dredging, during construction, operations, or both? LYesly/]No
(Not including general site preparation, grading or installation of utilities or foundations where all excavated
materials will remain onsite)
If Yes:
i .What is the purpose of the excavation or dredging?
ii. How much material (including rock, earth, sediments, etc.) is proposed to be removed from the site?
e Volume (specify tons or cubic yards):

e  Over what duration of time?
iii, Describe nature and characteristics of materials to be excavated or dredged, and plans to use, manage or dispose of them.

[yesINo

iv. Will there be onsite dewatering or processing of excavated materials?
If yes, describe.

v. What is the total area to be dredged or excavated? acres
acres

vi. What is the maximum area to be worked at any one time?

vii. What would be the maximum depth of excavation or dredging? feet

viii, Will the excavation require blasting? [JYes[INo
ix. Summarize site reclamation goals and plan:

b. Would the proposed action cause or result in alteration of, increase or decrease in size of, or encroachment /] Yes[INo
into any existing wetland, waterbody, shoreline, beach or adjacent area?

If Yes:
i. Identify the wetland or waterbody which would be affected (by name, water index number, wetland map number or geographic

description): The design will avaid wetlands and waterbodies to the extent practicable.

Page 4 of 13

-63-




ii. Describe how the proposed action would affect that waterbody or wetland, e.g. excavation, fill, placement of structures, or
alteration of channels, banks and shorelines. Indicate extent of activities, alterations and additions in square feet or acres:

If Yes:
i. Total anticipated liquid waste generation per day: gallons/day

approximate volumes or proportions of each):

iii. Will the proposed action cause or result in disturbance to bottom sediments? [dYes[No
If Yes, describe:
iv. Will the proposed action cause or result in the destruction or removal of aquatic vegetation? [JYes[INo
If Yes:
e acres of aquatic vegetation proposed to be removed:
o expected acreage of aquatic vegetation remaining after project completion;
e purpose of proposed removal (e.g. beach clearing, invasive species control, boat access):
e proposed method of plant removal:
e if chemical/herbicide treatment will be used, specify product(s):
v. Describe any proposed reclamation/mitigation following disturbance:
c. Will the proposed action use, or create a new demand for water? [Yes[ZINo
If Yes:
i. Total anticipated water usage/demand per day: ' gallons/day
ii. Will the proposed action obtain water from an existing public water supply? COYes[No
If Yes:
e Name of district or service area:
e Does the existing public water supply have capacity to serve the proposal? [ Yes[]No
e Is the project site in the existing district? O YesCONo
e Isexpansion of the district needed? O YesCINo
e Do existing lines serve the project site? O YesCINo
iii. Will line extension within an existing district be necessary to supply the project? CIYes[No
If Yes:
o Describe extensions or capacity expansions proposed to serve this project:
e  Source(s) of supply for the district:
iv. Is a new water supply district or service area proposed to be formed to serve the project site? 3 Yes[ONo
If, Yes:
e Applicant/sponsor for new district:
e Date application submitted or anticipated:
e  Proposed source(s) of supply for new district:
v. If a public water supply will not be used, describe plans to provide water supply for the project:
vi. If water supply will be from wells (public or private), what is the maximum pumping capacity: gallons/minute.
d. Will the proposed action generate liquid wastes? [dYesk/INo

ii. Nature of liquid wastes to be generated (e.g., sanitary wastewater, industrial; if combination, describe all components and

iii. Will the proposed action use any existing public wastewater treatment facilities? [JYes[No
If Yes:
e  Name of wastewater treatment plant to be used:
e  Name of district:
e  Does the existing wastewater treatment plant have capacity to serve the project? OYes[INo
e Isthe project site in the existing district? Yes[INo
e Isexpansion of the district needed? [JIYes[INo

Page 5 of 13

-64-




e Do existing sewer lines serve the project site? [OYes[ONo
e Will a line extension within an existing district be necessary to serve the project? [OYes[INo

If Yes:
e Describe extensions or capacity expansions proposed to serve this project:

[Yes[INo

iv. Will a new wastewater (sewage) treatment district be formed to serve the project site?
If Yes: '

e  Applicant/sponsor for new district:

e  Date application submitted or anticipated:

o What is the receiving water for the wastewater discharge?
v. If public facilities will not be used, describe plans to provide wastewater treatment for the project, including specifying proposed

receiving water (name and classification if surface discharge or describe subsurface disposal plans):

vi. Describe any plans or designs to capture, recycle or reuse liquid waste:

e. Will the proposed action disturb more-than one acre and create stormwater runoff, either from new point iYes[JNo
sources (i.e. ditches, pipes, swales, curbs, gutters or other concentrated flows of stormwater) or non-point
source (i.e. sheet flow) during construction or post construction?

If Yes:
i. How much impervious surface will the project create in relation to total size of project parcel?

Square feet or _0068 acres (impervious surface)
Square feet or _gn g5 acres (parcel size)
ii. Describe types of new point sources. _None

iii, Where will the stormwater runoff be directed (i.e. on-site stormwater management facility/structures, adjacent properties,

groundwater, on-site surface water or off-site surface waters)?
Temporary runoff during construction will be discharged on-site and controlled by stormwater and sediment/erosion control best management practices.

Sheet flow from solar panels will Infiltrate ground surface as currently.
e Ifto surface waters, identify receiving water bodies or wetlands:

e Will stormwater runoff flow to adjacent properties? OYeslZINo
#v. Does the proposed plan minimize impervious surfaces, use pervious materials or collect and re-use stormwater? M YesCINo

f. Does the proposed action include, or will it use on-site, one or more sources of air emissions, including fuel 1Yes[JNo
combustion, waste incineration, or other processes or operations?

If Yes, identify:
i. Mobile sources during project operations (e.g., heavy equipment, fleet or delivery vehicles)

Vehicles for maintenance, lawn cutting, etc. (occasional basis)

ii. Stationary sources during construction (e.g., power generation, structural heating, batch plant, crushers)

None
iii. Stationary sources during operations (e.g., process emissions, large boilers, electric generation)

None

g. Will any air emission sources named in D.2.f (above), require a NY State Air Registration, Air Facility Permit, OYesiZINo
or Federal Clean Air Act Title IV or Title V Permit? .

If Yes:
i. Is the project site located in an Air quality non-attainment area? (Area routinely or periodically fails to meet OYesCINo

ambient air quality standards for all or some parts of the year)
ii. In addition to emissions as calculated in the application, the project will generate:
Tons/year (short tons) of Carbon Dioxide (CO,)
Tons/year (short tons) of Nitrous Oxide (N,O)
Tons/year (short tons) of Perfluorocarbons (PFCs)
Tons/year (short tons) of Sulfur Hexafluoride (SF) )
Tons/year (short tons) of Carbon Dioxide equivalent of Hydroflourocarbons (HFCs)
Tons/year (short tons) of Hazardous Air Pollutants (HAPs)

Page 6 of 13

-65-



h. Will the proposed action generate or emit methane (including, but not limited to, sewage treatment plants, [Yesl/INo
landfills, composting facilities)?
If Yes:
i. Estimate methane generation in tons/year (metric):

ii. Describe any methane capture, control or elimination measures included in project design (e.g., combustion to generate heat or
electricity, flaring):

i. Will the proposed action result in the release of air pollutants from open-air operations or processes, such as [JYesl/]No
quarry or landfill operations? _
If Yes: Describe operations and nature of emissions (e.g., diesel exhaust, rock particulates/dust):

j- Will the proposed action result in a substantial increase in traffic above present levels or generate substantial [JYesi/INo
new demand for transportation facilities or services?
If Yes:
i. When is the peak traffic expected (Check all that apply): [ Mormning [ Evening OWetkend
[ Randomly between hours of to

ii. For commercial activities only, projected number of truck trips/day and type (e.g., semi trailers and dump trucks):

iii. Parking spaces: ~ Existing Proposed Net increase/decrease

iv. Does the proposed action include any shared use parking? Cyes[ONo
v. If the proposed action includes any modification of existing roads, creation of new roads or change in existing access, describe:

vi. Are public/private transportation service(s) or facilities available within %2 mile of the proposed site? [OYes[INo

vii Will the proposed action include access to public transportation or accommodations for use of hybrid, electric ~ [JYes[ JNo
or other alternative fueled vehicles?

viii. Will the proposed action include plans for pedestrian or bicycle accommodations for connections to existing ~ [JYes[JNo

pedestrian or bicycle routes?

k. Will the proposed action (for commercial or industrial projects only) generate new or additional demand [IYesi/INo

for energy?
If Yes:

i. Estimate annual electricity demand during operation of the proposed action:

ii. Anticipated sources/suppliers of electricity for the project (e.g., on-site combustion, on-site renewable, via grid/local utility, or
other):

iii. Will the proposed action require a new, or an upgrade, to an existing substation? [Yes[INo

1. Hours of operation. Answer all items which apply.

i, During Construction: ii. During Operations:
e Monday - Friday: 7AM-7PM e  Monday - Friday: dawn to dusk
e Saturday: 7AM-7PM. e  Saturday: dawn to dusk
e Sunday: 7 AM-7PM e  Sunday: dawn to dusk
¢ Holidays: 7AM-7PM e  Holidays: dawn to dusk
Page 7 of 13

-66-




m. Will the proposed action produce noise that will exceed existing ambient noise levels during construction, i1 Yes[INo

operation, or both?
If yes:
i. Provide details including sources, time of day and duration:
During construction: some minor construction noises from equipment during installation; Operations: some noise from inverters

ii. Will the proposed action remove existing natural barriers that could act as a noise barrier or screen? K Yes[INo
Describe: Removal of trees.
n. Will the proposed action have outdoor lighting? OYesINo
Ifyes:
i. Describe source(s), location(s), height of fixture(s), direction/aim, and proximity to nearest occupied structures:
ii. Will proposed action remove existing natural barriers that could act as a light barrier or screen? OYes[INo
Describe:
o. Does the proposed action have the potential to produce odors for more than one hour per day? O YeskINo
If Yes, describe possible sources, potential frequency and duration of odor emissions, and proximity to nearest
occupied structures:
O YeskINo

p. Will the proposed action include any bulk storage of petroleum (combined capacity of over 1,100 gallons)
or chemical products 185 gallons in above ground storage or any amount in underground storage?

If Yes: :
i. Product(s) to be stored

ii. Volume(s) per unit time (e.g., month, year)
iii. Generally, describe the proposed storage facilities:

q. Will the proposed action (commercial, industrial and recreational projects only) use pesticides (i.e., herbicides, [ Yes [ZINo
insecticides) during construction or operation?

If Yes:
i. Describe proposed treatment(s):

ii. Will the proposed action use Integrated Pest Management Practices? [ Yes [INo

r. Will the proposed action (commercial or industrial projects only) involve or require the management or disposal  [Z] Yes [1No
of solid waste (excluding hazardous materials)?

If Yes:
i. Describe any solid waste(s) to be generated during construction or operation of the facility:
e  Construction: 300 tons per __year (construction) (unit of time)
e Operation : o tons per (unit of time)

ii. Describe any proposals for on-site minimization, recycling or reuse of materials to avoid disposal as solid waste:
Construction: Waste generated during construction would be largely due to packaging. Much of It (approx. 70%) will be recyclable

(cardboard, pallets).

e  Operation: _ N/A

iii. Proposed disposal methods/facilities for solid waste generated on-site:
e Construction: Recycling of reusable materials; disposal to land fill of other materials.

e Operation: __NA

Page 8 of 13

-67-



[ Yes /] No

s. Does the proposed action include construction or modification of a solid waste management facility?

If Yes:
i. Type of management or handling of waste proposed for the site (e.g., recycling or transfer station, composting, landfill, or

other disposal activities):
ii. Anticipated rate of disposal/processing:

° Tons/month, if transfer or other non-combustion/thermal treatment, or
° Tons/hour, if combustion or thermal treatment
iii. If landfill, anticipated site life: years

t. Will the proposed action at the site involve the commercial generation, treatment, storage, or disposal of hazardous [ ]Yes[/[No

waste?
If Yes:

i. Name(s) of all hazardous wastes or constituents to be generated, handled or managed at facility:

ii. Generally describe processes or activities involving hazardous wastes or constituents:

ifi. Specify amount to be handled or generated tons/month

iv. Describe any proposals for on-site minimization, recycling or reuse of hazardous constituents:

-68-

v. Will any hazardous wastes be disposed at an existing offsite hazardous waste facility? OyesCINo

If Yes: provide name and location of facility:

If No: describe proposed management of any hazardous wastes which will not be sent to a hazardous waste facility:

E. Sité and Setting of Proposed Action

E.1. Land uses on and surrounding the project site
a. Existing land uses.
i. Check all uses that occur on, adjoining and near the project site.
[0 Urban [ Industrial [J Commercial [ Residential (suburban) /] Rural (non-farm)
Al Forest [ Agriculture [J Aquatic [J Other (specify):
ii. If mix of uses, generally describe:
b. Land uses and covertypes on the project site.
Land use or Current Acreage After Change
Covertype Acreage Project Completion (Acres +/-)
Roads, buildings, and other paved or impervious
surfaces 0 0.0068 +0,0068
Forested 6.3 6.3 0
Meadows, grasslands or brushlands (non- 0.65 0.65 0
agricultural, including abandoned agricultural) ) )
Agricultural 0 0 0
(includes active orchards, field, greenhouse etc.)
Surface water features
" 0 0 0
(lakes, ponds, streams, rivers, etc.)
Wetlands (freshwater or tidal) 45.06 44,84 -0.22
Non-vegetated (bare rock, earth or fill) 0 0 0
Other
Describe: Temporary and permanent access drives 0 0.74 +0.74
Note: includes areas under panels
Page 9 of 13




c. Is the project site presently used by members of the community for public recreation? LyeslINo

i. If Yes: explain:

d. Are there any facilities serving children, the elderly, people with disabilities (e.g., schools, hospitals, licensed [JYesl/INo
day care centers, or group homes) within 1500 feet of the project site?

If Yes,
i. Identify Facilities:

e. Does the project site contain an existing dam? O YesiZINo
If Yes:
i. Dimensions of the dam and impoundment:
o Dam height: feet
e Dam length: feet
e Surface area: acres
e Volume impounded: gallons OR acre-feet
ii. Dam’s existing hazard classification:
iii. Provide date and summarize results of last inspection:
f. Has the project site ever been used as a municipal, commercial or industrial solid waste management facility, [JYeslZINo
or does the project site adjoin property which is now, or was at one time, used as a solid waste management facility?
If Yes:
i. Has the facility been formally closed? [Yes[] No
o Ifyes, cite sources/documentation:
ii. Describe the location of the project site relative to the boundaries of the solid waste management facility:
iii. Describe any development constraints due to the prior solid waste activities:
g. Have hazardous wastes been generated, treated and/or disposed of at the site, or does the project site adjoin [Yesl/INo

property which is now or was at one time used to commercially treat, store and/or dispose of hazardous waste?

If Yes:
i. Describe waste(s) handled and waste management activities, including approximate time when activities occurred:

h. Potential contamination history. Has there been a reported spill at the proposed project site, or have any [Yesi/] No
remedial actions been conducted at or adjacent to the proposed site? -
If Yes:
OYeslZINo

i. Is any portion of the site listed on the NYSDEC Spills Incidents database or Environmental Site
Remediation database? Check all that apply: '

O Yes — Spills Incidents database Provide DEC ID number(s):
[J Yes—Environmental Site Remediation database Provide DEC ID number(s):

[ Neither database
i, If site has been subject of RCRA corrective activities, describe control measures:

iii. Is the project within 2000 feet of any site in the NYSDEC Environmental Site Remediation database? OYeslINo
If yes, provide DEC ID number(s):

iv. If yes to (i), (ii) or (iii) above, describe current status of site(s):

Page 10 of 13

-69-



v. Is the project site subject to an institutional control limiting property uses?
If yes, DEC site ID number:

[ Yesi/INo

Describe the type of institutional control (e.g., deed restriction or easement):

Describe any use limitations:

Describe any engineering controls:

Will the project affect the institutional or engineering controls in place?
Explain:

[JYes[INo

E.2. Natural Resources On or Near Project Site

a. What is the average depth to bedrock on the project site? >6.5 feet

b. Are there bedrock outcroppings on the project site?
If Yes, what proportion of the site is comprised of bedrock outcroppings? %

[Yes/INo

c. Predominant soil type(s) present on project site: Lamson fine sandy loam
Niagara silt loam
Minoa fine sandy loam

60 %
12 %
10 %

d. What is the average depth to the water table on the project site? Average: 5 feet

e. Drainage status of project site soils:p/] Well Drained: 10 % of site
[1 Moderately Well Drained: % of site

/] Poorly Drained 81 % of site

f. Approximate proportion of proposed action site with slopes: [/] 0-10%: 93.2 % of site
K71 10-15%: 3.3 % of'site
I 15% or greater: 3.5 % of site

g. Are there any unique geologic features on the project site?
If Yes, describe:

[1YesZINo

h. Surface water features.
i. Does any portion of the project site contain wetlands or other waterbodies (including streams, rivers,

ponds or lakes)?
ii. Do any wetlands or other waterbodies adjoin the project site?

If Yes to either i or ii, continue. If No, skip to E.2.i.
iii. Are any of the wetlands or waterbodies within or adjoining the project site regulated by any federal,
state or local agency?

iv. For each identified regulated wetland and waterbody on the project site, provide the following information:

Name 910-1171 Classification P

Z1Yes[INo
1YesINo

[Yes[INo

e Streams:

Lakes or Ponds: Name Classification

®

®  Wetlands: Name Federal Waters, Federal Waters, Federal Waters,... Approximate Size
®  Wetland No. (if regulated by DEC) _

v. Are any of the above water bodies listed in the most recent compilation of NY'S water quality-impaired

waterbodies?
If yes, name of impaired water body/bodies and basis for listing as impaired:

OYeskZiNo

i. Is the project site in a designated Floodway?.

[JYesiZINo

j. Is the project site in the 100-year Floodplain?

OYesZINo

k. Is the project site in the 500-year Floodplain?

[IYesfZNo

1. Is the project site located over, or immediately adjoining, a primary, principal or sole source aquifer?

If Yes:

i. Name of aquifer: Principal Aquifer

[/1Yes[INo

Page 11 of 13

-70-




m. Identify the predominant wildlife species that occupy or use the project site:
varlous small mammals, birds, reptiles,
amphibians, etc.

n. Does the project site contain a designated significant natural community? [Yes/INo

If Yes:
i. Describe the habitat/community (composition, function, and basis for designation):

ii. Source(s) of description or evaluation:
iii. Extent of community/habitat:

e  Currently: acres
e Following completion of project as proposed: acres
e Gain or loss (indicate + or -): acres
o. Does project site contain any species of plant or animal that is listed by the federal government or NYS as [ Yesi/INo
endangered or threatened, or does it contain any areas identified as habitat for an endangered or threatened species?
If Yes:

i. Species and listing (endangered or threatened):

p. Does the project site contain any species of plant or animal that is listed by NYS as rare, or as a species of CdYesl/INo
special concern?
If Yes:

i. Species and listing:

q. Is the project site or adjoining area currently used for hunting, trapping, fishing or shell fishing? [YesZINo

If yes, give a brief description of how the proposed action may affect that use:

E.3. Designated Public Resources On or Near Project Site

a. Is the project site, or any portion of it, located in a designated agricultural district certified pursuant to [JYes[/INo
Agriculture and Markets Law, Article 25-AA, Section 303 and 304?
If Yes, provide county plus district name/number:

b. Are agricultural lands consisting of highly productive soils present? ) OYesl/INo
i. If Yes: acreage(s) on project site?

ii. Source(s) of soil rating(s):

c. Does the project site contain all or part of, or is it substantially contiguous to, a registered National [IYes[/INo
Natural Landmark?
If Yes:
i. Nature of the natural landmark: [ Biological Community [0 Geological Feature

ii. Provide brief description of landmark, including values behind designation and approximate size/extent:

d. Is the project site located in or does it adjoin a state listed Critical Environmental Area? [JYes/INo

If Yes:
i. CEA name:

ii. Basis for designation:

iii. Designating agency and date:

Page 12 of 13

-71-



e. Does the project site contain, or is it substantially contiguous to, a building, archacological site, or district [ YesiZINo
which is listed on the National or State Register of Historic Places, or that has been determined by the Commissioner of the NYS
Office of Parks, Recreation and Historic Preservation to be eligible for listing on the State Register of Historic Places?

If Yes: ’

i. Nature of historic/archaeological resource: [JArchaeological Site [Historic Building or District

ii. Name:

iii. Brief description of attributes on which listing is based:

f. Is the project site, or any portion of it, located in or adjacent to an area designated as sensitive for [IYesk/INo
archaeological sites on the NY State Historic Preservation Office (SHPO) archacological site inventory?

g. Have additional archaeological or historic site(s) or resources been identified on the project site? [dYesi/INo

If Yes:

i. Describe possible resource(s):

ii. Basis for identification:

h. Is the project site within fives miles of any officially designated and publicly accessible federal, state, or local [dYesiZINo

scenic or aesthetic resource?
If Yes:

i. Identify resource:
ii. Nature of, or basis for, designation (e.g., established highway overlook, state or local park, state historic trail or scenic byway,

etc.):

iii. Distance between project and resource: miles.

i. Is the project site located within a designated river corridor under the Wild, Scenic and Recreational Rivers 1 Yesl/INo
Program 6 NYCRR 666?

If Yes:
i. Identify the name of the river and its designation:

ii. Is the activity consistent with development restrictions contained in 6NYCRR Part 666? [Yes[JNo

F. Additional Information
Attach any additional information which may be needed to clarify your project.

If you have identified any adverse impacts which could be associated with your proposal, please describe those impacts plus any
measures which you propose to avoid or minimize them.

G. Verification
I certify that the information provided is true to the best of my knowledge.

Applicant/Sponsor Name Jonathan Rappe Date _1/28/2021
Signature {ld) (f OL/ Title Authorized signatory of Wilna PV, LLC's sole member
PRINT FORM Page 13 of 13

-72-



EAF Mapper Summary Report Wednesday, January 6, 2021 1:42 PM

Disclaimer: The EAF Mapper is a screening too! intended to assist
project sponsors and reviewing agencies in preparing an environmental
assessment form (EAF). Not all questions asked in the EAF are
answered by the EAF Mapper. Additional information on any EAF
question can be obtained by consulting the EAF Workbooks. Although
the EAF Mapper pravides the most up-to-date digilal data available to
DEC, you may also need to contact local or other data sources in order
to obtain data not provided by the Mapper. Digital data Is not a
substitute for agency determinations.

1l

|
Otfana Monwea
i s "

[ Tolumu y
' Lasta. o

sl Y TEIRZ Pafh.)..l a
:&l):' H.l ! b el Nlarvi
T pPatolt 4 thm
- Glevéibod ,»,f-"rmld—nce
) Frotmr b g J‘JW Yok
calyr
. —va:burqh ) Ph liadel il

o
Samin LISGS, Intemaps, INCREENTF, | lF\&\n Esni Japsan, METI, Esii China {Hong Kongj, Eshi 5’:IatEl\lT]rin’l‘l
Karea, Esri (Thailandi, MGCC (2 Op-:ﬂStJ Zathap contiibutors, and tha GIS User Comm unity c(u\(\pa15f:|:-=al'lal1 rnrwnb"rsgl,

'Run Esii Japan; MEI'I Esn <.h|na (Honj Kangf, Esii
mp [‘ﬁl&h" GIS Usar Commuiitty

B.i.i [Coastal or Waterfront Area] ~ No

‘B.i. i [Local Waterfront Rewtahzatnon Area] ‘No S -

iC.2.b. [Spemal Plannlng Dlstnct] Dngltal mapplng data are not avarlable or are |ncomplete Refer to EAF
E.1.h [DEC Spills or Remediation Site - 'Dlglta! mappmg data are not available or are mcomplete Refer to EAF
‘Potential Contamination History] ~ ‘Workbook.

E.1hi [DEC Spllls or Remediation Site - Dlgrtal mappmg data are not available or are incomplete Refer to EAF
Llsted] : Workbook
E.1.h.i [DEC Spills or Remediation Site - Drgltal mappmg data are not available or are lncomplete Refer to EAF

Envrronmental Slte Remediation Database] ‘Workbook.
E.1hii [Wnthrn 2, 000" of DEC Remediation No

w8 R
E.2g [Umque Geologlc Features] ‘No

E.2.h.i [Surface Water Features] ers '

E.2.hiii [Surface Water Features] o ,}Yes

E.2.h.ji [Surface Water Features] T Yes SD‘igvi'taI' mapuiug information on local and federal wetlands and

waterbodles is known to be lncomplete Refer to EAF Workbook

E.2.h.iv [Surface Water Features - Stream  :910-1171

Name] -

:E.2.h.iv [Surface Water Features - Stream D

:Classifi catron] _ o

‘E.2.h.iv [Surface Water Features - Wetlands :Federal Waters

:Name] e by e

‘E.2.hv [Impalred Water Bodles] ‘No

E 2.i. [Floodway] ' QDigitaI rh'apping data are not available or are incomplete. Refer to EAF
~ ‘Workbook. i

E.2j . [1 00 Year Floodplam] Dlgltal mapping data are not available or are mcomplete Refer to EAF

‘Workbook.
Full Environmental Assessment Form - EAF Mapper Summary Report 1

-73-



E.2.k. [5‘0'0' Year'Floodplaih] ” '::Digital rhappihg data are not available or are ihébrﬁbl-ete. Refer to EAF

Workbook.
E.2.l. [Aquifers] ' Yes
E.2.l. [Aquifer Names] ) " .Principal Aquifer
E.2.n. [Natu‘ral Corr{fnuhities] v No o
E.2.0. [Endangered or Threatened Species] ‘No
E.2.p. [Rare Plvahfs‘gr'Ahimals] B No
E3a. [Agricultural District] ~~ No
E.3.c. [National Natural Landmark] ~ :No
E3d fbriticél Envirbnniéntél Area]' " No

‘E.3.e. [Nafionéi or State Register of Historic Digital mapping data are not available or are incorﬁblete. Refer to EAF
Places or State Eligile Sites] ~ Workbook.

.E.3.f. [Archeological Sites] ‘No

jE.3.i.V[D'eéignéted Rive'r‘Corrid‘c')f] ‘ ~ No

Full Environmental Assessment Form - EAF Mapper Summary Report

-74-



TOWN OF WILNA PLANNING BOARD

Chairperson 414 State St Secretary
Carthage, New York 13619-1414 Lori Borland

Jon W Storms
' (315) 493-2771

Members Members
Robert Fetterly Participating Municipalities Bill Dutton
Charles Florence TOWN OF WILNA Rober't Sligaf _
Kathleen Latremore VILLAGE OF CARTHAGE Yolanda Skvorak .

VILLAGE OF DEFERIET '
04/07/2021 REGULAR IN PERSON MEETING

Purpose: Regular Meeting

Attendance: Jon Storms, Charles Florence, Kathleen Latremore, Bill Dutton, Robert Sligar, Lori Borland,
John Reagan, Tom Storino (Storino Surveying), Rob Busler (LaFave, White & McGivern surveyors),Chris

Loomis, Jeff Loomis, Kim Munn, Steve Gamble
Excused: Robert Fetterly, Yolanda Skvorak
Chairman Storms called the Regular Meeting to order at 5:00 p.m.

Minutes: Motion was made by Mr. Dutton, seconded by Mrs. Latremore to approve the minutes of the
March 3, 2021 meeting. All voted Aye, carried.

Correspondence: None

Village of Carthage Business — Chris & Jeff Loomis were in attendance to get direction on what is
needed to put an addition on their home for her mother. Zoning law currently calls for 15’ setback from
the property line. The addition will be closer than that to the neighbor’s property. After discussion, it
was noted that this needs to be a lot line adjustment to begin with the neighbor submitting the
application. Loomises will follow up with the neighbor.

Village of Deferiet Business: Mr. Storms has signed the paperwork and map for the lot line adjustment
for the parcel obtained from the Village of Deferiet to a private owner.

Town of Wilna Business:
a.) Regarding the O’Connor subdivision on NYS Rt. 3, it was noted that there will be a modular

home placed on the property. The Board having had no issues with the project, a public hearing
was set for May 5, 2021 at 5:00 p.m.

b.) Regarding the Buskey subdivision on Avery Road, the Board having had no issues with the
project, a public hearing was set for May 5, 2021 at 5:00 p.m.

....} c.) Regarding Wilna Solar project at 42459 County Rt. 41, Natural Bridge, NY John Reagan of RIC
Energy was present to answer any questions. He noted that Fort Drum has no issues with this
project. The SEQR application Parts 2 and 3 were reviewed, and upon motion by Mr. Florence,
seconded by Mr. Dutton, it was voted that there is no negative issues with this project,

-75-



d.)

therefore, a Negative Declaration was approved. All voted Aye, carried. Motion was made by
Mrs. Latremore, seconded by Mr. Dutton, to approve a Special Use Permit be issued to RIC
Energy for this project. All voted Aye, carried.

The subject of the Decommissioning Bond was brought up, and the amount of the bond would
be for $200,295 based upon the cost estimate of decommissioning this project at the end of life
cycle. This cost estimate would be reviewed every three years and the bond amount adjusted
accordingly. The Town Board will need to approve the Bond amount at their next meeting on
April 12, 2021. '

Steve Gamble was present to propose a lot line adjustment with his neighbor on NYS Rt. 3. He
provided a survey map drawn by Moncrief Land Surveying. The paperwork will be given to the
Zoning Officer, Terry McKeever, and reviewed. This matter was tabled until the next meeting.

Other Business: Mr. Storms brought up a matter regarding a letter that the Jefferson County
Agricultural Board sent to Scott Gray, Chairman of the County Board of Legislators. It regards placing
solar projects on what is now prime agricultural soil sites. It encourages that future solar sites be placed
on brownfield sites, former landfills, and such sites of that nature, discouraging the use of prime
agricultural sites. The Board will ask the Town Board for a letter of support to the County regarding

these issues.

Next Meeting: May 5, 2021 at 5:00 p.m. This will be IN PERSON at the Town Offices at 414 State Street,
Carthage, NY, with two public hearings held just prior to the regular meeting.

There being no further business to come before the Board, a motion was made by Mr. Dutton, seconded
by Mr. Storms, to adjourn. Meeting adjourned at 6:00 p.m.

Respectfully submitted:

Lori Borland, Secretary

CC:

Jon Storms Paul Smith Robert Fetterly Charles Florence Yolanda Skvorak Robert Sligar
Janet Zando William Dutton Terry McKeever Kathleen Latremore Reggie Huber Lori Borland
Kristy O’Shaughnessy

-76-



Jefferson County Industrial Development Agency
Project Summary Date 8/17/2022
Project RIC-WILNA PV, LLC NAICS: 221114
Location 42459 CR 41, Natural Bridge, NY 13665 Project Acres  Total Acres School Carthage
Tax Parce 68.00-1040.1 21.21 60.95
RCI Development ( Billing Address) :
85 Broad St. Fl. 28, NY, NY 10004 % of Proj NYS Tax l County Tax |Town Weilna
Total Project Costs 5,020,719 Jobs
Land Retained 0
Infrastructure 576,600 Added 0.33
Inter Connect 392,442 Total 0.33
Furniture & Fixtures 348,000 Next Five Years 0.33
Equipment - SOLAR 2,498,600 Construction Jobs 30
General Labor 600,000 0 0[Current Assessment 38,600 Land
Electrical Labor 440,000 Final Assessment 1,221,699 Project
Eng/Arch Fees
Finance Charges Agency Fee $75,311
Legal / Planning/Permits 45,000 App Fee 2,500
Predevelopment Costs 106,077 Agency Fee is calculated based on the fee schedule
Other-Soft Costs 14,000 on the Application. This project is under $10 Million
lTotaI 5,020,719 so the fee Is .015% of Total Project Costs.
Sales Tax Exemption- Wilna Tax Rates % Distribution
Total Material 3,236,119 County 7.447377 2021 0.41351762
Town 2.945699 2021 0.16356073
4% County Tax 129,445 0 School 7.616742 2020 0.42292165
4% NYS Tax 129,445 18.009818 1
258,890
Mortgage Recording Tax Total
Est Mortgage Amount $4,518,107 Project Costs 5,020,719
MRT Savings 33,886 Fed ITC Grant 1,249,473
NYSERDA 422,840
Yearly Total Grants 1,672,313
Increase 1% Net Project Costs 3,348,406
W/0 PILOT
PILOT 3IMW Land Payment Current Taxes Total PILOT County Town School Total
Year1 21,771 3,820 22,003 25,591 9,003 3,561 9,208 21,771
Year 2 21,345 3,820 22,223 25,164 8,826 3,491 9,027 21,345
Year 3 20,926 3,820 22,445 24,746 8,653 3,423 8,850 20,926
Year 4 20,516 3,820 22,670 24,336 8,484 3,356 8,677 20,516
Year5 20,113 3,820 22,896 23,933 8,317 3,290 8,506 20,113
Year 6 19,719 3,820 23,125 23,539 8,154 3,225 8,340 19,719
Year 7 19,332 3,820 23,357 23,152 7,994 3,162 8,176 19,332
Year 8 18,953 3,820 23,590 22,773 7,838 3,100 8,016 18,953
Year 9 18,582 3,820 23,826 22,402 7,684 3,039 7,859 18,582
Year 10 18,217 3,820 24,064 22,037 7,533 2,980 7,705 18,217
Year 11 17,860 3,820 24,305 21,680 7,385 2,921 7,553 17,860
Year 12 17,510 3,820 24,548 21,330 7,241 2,864 7,405 17,510
Year 13 17,167 3,820 24,794 20,986 7,099 2,808 ~ 7,260 17,167
Year 14 16,830 3,820 25,041 20,650 6,960 2,753 7,118 16,830
Year 15 16,500 3,820 25,292 20,320 6,823 2,699 6,978 16,500
285,341 57,298 354,180 342,640 117,994 46,671 120,677 285,341
97%
New Project Per Acre  Land Current Current
New Assessment Assessment New Land Current Assess Project Project
3 Assessment Assess Acres Per Acre Acreage  Assessment
Improvements Only ( Add Land]} 1,009,599 38,600 60.95 10,000.00 21.21 212,100
Improvements & Land $1,221,699 New Project Land Assess. 212,100

SOLAR TEMPLATE/DESKTOP

Sy -




Jefferson County Industrial Development Agency

MRB Cost Benefit Calculator

Date August 17m 2022

Project Title RIC-WILNA PV, LLC

Project Location 4259 CR 41, NATURAL BRIDGE, NY 13665

MRB |

Cost-Benefit Analysis Tool powvered by MR8 Group

Summary of Economic Impacts over the Life of the PILOT

$5,020,719

Direct Indirect Total

Jobs. 16 T

Earnings $1,661,002 $379,430 $2,040,432

Local Spend $4,016,575 $1,362,543 $5,379,118

. Aggregaie o(/er life of the PILOT
Direct Indirect Total
Jobs:'w et et
Earnings’ $0 $0 $0
Figure 1
Net Benefits
$2,500,000
$2,000.000
$1,500,000
$1,000,000
$500,000
30
& .\’\ \’1, A\”—; > ) ‘Q: __"\ . ‘:\‘b ‘°; AN
-$500,000 \SQL\\ 42" & O _\%’D\ \\?:b\ v & & _;a,‘b *q-}\k
&
s Benefits Costs Net Benefits

Net Benefits chart will always display construction through year 10, irrespective of the length of the PILOT.

Figure 2

Total Jobs

Temporary

Ongoing

20 25 30

10

15

‘ Direct Indirect

© Copyright 2021 MRB Engineering, Architecture and Surveying, D.P.C.

Temporary

Ongoing

Figure 3

Total Earnings

$500.000 $1,060,000 $1,500,000 52,000,000 §2.500,000

(Direct Indirect

Ongoing eornings are all earnings over the life of the PILOT.

-78-




Estimated Caosts of Exemptions

Property Tax Exemption
Sales Tax Exemption
Local Sales Tax Exemption
State Sales Tax Exemption
Mortgage Recording Tax Exemption
Local Mortgage Recording Tax Exemption
State Mortgage Recording Tax Exemption

Total Costs

Local Benefits
To Private Individuals
Temporary Payroll
Ongoing Payroll
Other Payments to Private Individuals
To the Public
Increase in Property Tax Revenue
Temporary Jobs - Sales Tax Revenue
Ongoing Jobs - Sales Tax Revenue
Other Local Municipal Revenue

State Benefits

To the Public
Temporary Income Tax Revenue
Ongoing Income Tax Revenue
Temporary Jobs - Sales Tax Revenue
Ongoing Jobs - Sales Tax Revenue

Total Benefits to State & Region

Benefit to Cost Ratio

Local
State

Grand Total
*Discounted at 2%

Nominal Value
$11,540
$0
0
50
$33,886
811,295
$22.591
$45,426

Nominal Value
$2,385,354
$2,040,432
$2,040,432

50

50
$344,922
$330,639
514,283
30

30

$106,102

£106,102
$91,819
30
14,263
30

$2,491,456

Benefit*

$2,339,732
$106,102

Cost-Benefit Analysis Tool powvered by MRB Group

Discounted Value*

$6,986

$0

$0

50

$33,886

811,295

$22,591

$40,872

Discounted Value*
$2,339,732

$2,040,432
$2,040,432
50
30

$299,301
$285,018
$14.283
30

$0

$106,102
$106,102
$91,819
50
314,283
$0

$2,445,835

Cost* Ratio
© s8281 1281
$22,591 5:1
 sas2 01

$2,445,835

Additional Comments from IDA

:.'I:own of Wilna;s 14 ywear a;/erage tax rate increase was ;rié{;ativra% and the fivr year avsra-ge‘isuflat. I used a 1% estimate of future years increases. | used

;the States Appraisal Mobel and then added lans at $10.000.00 per acre to calculate totan estimated assessment for the project.. {

Does the IDA believe that the brojett can be accomp]ished ina tirnély fashion?

© Copyright 2021 MR8 Engineering, Architecture and Surveying, D.P.C.

Yes

-79-




Application to

Jefferson County Industrial
Development Agency (JCIDA)

0 Tax Exempt Bond Financing
0 Taxable Bond Financing
0 Lease Leaseback Transaction

Please contact the agency for more information
regarding project eligibility and application process.

Applicant (Company) Name:
Wilna PV, LLC

Applicant Address:
c/o RIC Development, LLC

Phone:
917-463-0421

E-mail:
jrappe@ric.energy

Application Date: August 16, 2022

Internal Use Only
Staff Signature and Date of Submission: (/7%4// //,@
Completed Application Date: € ://‘// s Staff Inltlal

Revised Date: ' , Revision #:

Document Date: July 28§, 2022

-80-=




Fee Schedlile

Updated as of the date of the document

Taxable and Tax Exempt Industrial Development Revenue Bonds

Application Fee:

Fee:

Point of Contact:

A non-refundable fee of $2,500.00 is payable to the JCIDA at the time the
application is submitted. This fee will be credited towards the total fee at closing.

First $10 million — 1.5% of the principal amount of the bond series.
$10 million - $20 million — 1% of the bond series.
Any amount over $20 million — 0.5% of the bond series.

Annual Fee - $1,500.00

David Zembiec — CEO JCIDA+1 (315) 782-5865

Lease Leaseback Transactions

Application Fee:

Fee:

Renewable Energy
Projects:

Point of Contact:

Revised Date:

A non-refundable fee of $2,500.00 is payable to the JCIDA at the time the
application is submitted. This fee will be credited towards the total fee at closing.

With a PILOT:

First $10 million — 1.5%

Second $10-$20 million - 0.5%

Any amount over $20 million - 0.25%
No PILOT - 25% of the abatement value
Annual Fee - $1,000.00

Application for Re-Assignment of benefits to new ownership - $2,000.00
Annual Administrative Fee - $1,500.00

David Zembiec - CEO JCIDA +1 (315)782-5865

, Revision #:

Document Date: 7/28/2022

-81-



Section I Applicant Information

Please answer all questions. Use “None” or “Not Applicable” where necessary.

A) Applicant Information-company receiving benefit:

Applicant Name; Wilna PV, LLC
Applicant Address: c/o RIC Development, 85 Broad St FL 28, New York, NY 10004

Phone: 917-463-0421 Fax: 917-463-0423
Website: WWW.Tic.energy _ E-mail- Irappe@ric.energy
Federal ID#: 84-4404114 ' © NAICS: 221114

Will a Real Estate Holding Company be utilized to own the Project property/facility? [M] Yes or[ ] No

What is the name of the Real Estate Holding Company: RIC New York, LLC
Federal ID#; 84-3731692

State and Year or Incorporation/Organization: New York, 2019
List of stockholders, members, or partners of Real Estate Holding Company: Renewable Investment
Corporation

Renewable Energy Projects: Attach ownership chart and indicate companies that will eventually own
and operate project Please see attached

B) Individual Completing Application:

Name: Jonathan Rappe

Title: CEO
Address: 89 Broad St FL 28, New York, NY 10004
Phone: 917-463-0421 Pix: 917-463-0423

E-Mail: irappe@ric.energy

C) Company Contact (if different from Section B above):

Name:
Title:

Address:
Phone: Fax:

E-Mail:

Revised Date: , Revision #:

Document Date: 7/28/2022

-82-



D) Company Counsel:

Name of Attorney: quan Katzoff

Firm Name: Bousquet Holstein

Address: 110 West Fayette Street | One Lincoln Center, Suite 1000 | Syracuse, New York 13202-1190
Phone: 319.701.6303 Fax: 315.410.1557

E-mail: Skatzoff@bhlawpllc.com

E) Identify the assistance being requested of the Agency (select all that apply):

1. Exemption from Sales Tax @] Yes or[] No
2. Exemption from Mortgage Tax ] Yes or [ ] No
3. Exemption from Real Property Tax ] Yes or[ ] No
4. Tax Exempt Financing * [] Yes or[] No

* (typically for not-for-profits and qualified small manufacturers)

F) Applicant Business Information (check appropriate category):

Corporation ] Partnership ]
Public Corporation ~ [] Joint Venture ]
Sole Proprietorship [l Limited Liability Company [x]
Other (please specify)

Year Established;_2020
State in which Organization is established: Delaware

G) List all applicant stockholders, members or partners with % of ownership greater than 5%

(including all parent entities) [INCLUDE CHART]

NOTE: All applicants must include a current ownership chart reflecting equity ownership. Applications
will not be accepted or deemed complete without this information.

The Agency's acceptance of this aﬁplicaﬁon will be specific to the existing equity ownership of the
applicant and the Agency's ultimate approval is likewise specific tb the applicant equity ownership (the
taxpayer beneficiaries of the Agency's financial assistance). The Agency's approval of any proposed
project shall be specific to the equity ownership of the Company at the time of application to the Agency.
The Agency's approval of any financial assistance, including real property tax exemptions, is non-

transferrable and may not be assigned or assumed without the Agency's prior written consent. Any

Revised Date: , Revision #:

Document Date: 7/28/2022

-83-



transfer in excess of fifty percent (50%) of the equity voting interests of the Company (including all
parent companies of the Company through and including the ultimate taxpayer(s) owning or controlling
the Company), other than to a Related Person of the Company, shall be deemed an assignment and
require the prior written consent of the Agency. Any proposed assignment shall require the prior written
consent of the Agency upon written application no less than 45 days prior to a regularly scheduled

meeting of the Agency.

Name % of ownership
RIC Development, LLC 100%
Renewable Investment Corporation 100% parent of RIC Development, LLC

H) Applicant Business Description:

Describe in detail company background, products, customers, goods and services. Description is critical
in determining eligibility:; APPlicant is a special purpose project company, established for the

purposes of building, owning and operating a 3 MW solar PV power plant. Sponsor
develops and builds similar projects nation-wide.

Estimated % of sales within Jefferson County: 0

Estimated % of sales outside Jefferson County, but within New York State: 100%
Estimated % of sales outside New York State but within the U.S.: 0%
Estimated % of sales outside the U.S. 0%

(*Percentage to equal 100%)

I) What percentage of your total annual supplies, raw materials and vendor services are purchased from
firms in Jefferson County. Include list of vendors, raw material suppliers and percentages for each.

Provide supporting documentation including estimated percentage of local purchases.
Applicant doesn't currently have operations in Jefferson County. If approved, this project

will contract local labor to construct and maintain the facility.

Revised Date: , Revision #:

Document Date: 7/28/2022

-84-



A) Project Location:

List your current operation(s) locations in Jefferson County:
None

List your current operation(s) locations in New York State:
RIC Development has over 60 sites in various stages of development around NY state.

Provide the Property Address of the proposed Project: _
42459 County Route 41, Natural Bridge, NY 13665

Will the completion of the Project result in the removal, or reduction of an industrial or manufacturing

plant of the Applicant from: one area of New York State to Jefferson County; or within Jefferson County?

[J Yes or No [H]

If Yes, please provide details

Will the completion of the Project result in the abandonment of one or more plants or facilities of the

Applicant located within New York State?

[] Yes or No [H]

If Yes, please provide details

Will the Proposed Project cause Applicant’s current operations within Jefferson County to be closed or

be subjected to reduced activity?

[J Yes or No [m]

If Yes, please provide details

If Yes to any of the above three (3) questions, Applicant must complete Section IV of this Application.

Revised Date: , Revision #:

Document Date: 7/28/2022

-85-



Will the completion of the Project result in the abandonment, removal, or reduction of an industrial or

manufacturing plant of a closely aligned competitor from one area of New York State or Jefferson

County?
[] Yes or No [m]

If Yes, please provide details

SBL Number for Property upon which-proposed Project will be located: 68.00-1-40.1

What are the current real estate taxes on the proposed Project Site? $465.99 County/Town, $294.01 School

If amount of current taxes is not available, provide assessed value for each:
Land: § Buildings(s): $

** If available please include a copy of current tax bill.

Are Real Property Taxes current? [M] Yes or[ ] No. If no, please explain

Town/City/Village: Wilna School District: Carthage Central

Does the Applicant or any related entity currently hold fee title to the Project site? | Yes or [H] No
If No, indicate name of present owner of the Project Site: Wayne and Linda Schermerhorn

Does Applicant or related entity have an option/contract to purchase the Project site? [H] Yes or[ ] No

B) Please provide narrative of project and the purpose of the project (new build, renovations,
and/or equipment purchases). Identify specific uses occurring within the project. Describe any and

all tenants and any/all end users: (This information is critical in determining project eligibility):
RIC New York, LLC will purchase the underlying property from it's current owner and lease a portion of it to the Applicant, Wilna PV, LLC.

Wilna PV, LLC will be constructing a 3 MW solar PV power plant on the property, interconnected to National Grid's power distribution

network. The project will generate utility bill credits under National Grid's Community Distributed Generation program, which will be sold

at a discount to local business and residential ratepayers. The plant will require minimal operations and maintenance and will quietly generate

clean energy for 30-35 years.

Describe the reasons why the Agency’s Financial Assistance is necessary, and the effect the Project
will have on the Applicant’s business or operations. Focus on competitiveness issues, project
shortfalls, etc... Your eligibility determination will be based in part on your answer (attach
additional pages if necessary): See additional pages

Revised Date: , Revision #:

Document Date: 7/28/2022

-86-



Please confirm by checking the box, below, if there is a strong possibility that the Project would not
be undertaken but for the Financial Assistance provided by the Agency?

[®] Yes or[] No
If Yes, please provide details: T he payment of statutory property tax could not be supported by the

expected revenues from the plant and still provide an acceptable rate of return.

If the Project could be undertaken without Financial Assistance provided by the Agency, then
provide a statement in the space provided below indicating why the Project should be undertaken

by the Agency:

If the Applicant is unable.to obtain Financial Assistance for the Project, what will be the impact on
the Ap plicant? The project will not move forward without financial assistance

C) Will Project include leasing any equipment [H] Yes or[ ] No
If Yes, please describe: Some specialized equipment will be leased for the construction of

the plant.

D) Site Characteristics:

Describe the present use of the proposed Project site: _I N€ site is currently partially wooded and
partially open, but isn't be used for anything.

Will the Project meet zoning/land use requirements at the proposed location? [M] Yes or[ ] No

If Yes, please provide local zoning reference that applies: AR - Agricultural and Rural Residential

For Renewable Energy Projects — provide acres [H] leased or [] owned: 21-21

Revised Date: , Revision #:

Document Date: 7/28/2022

_87-



Describe the present zoning/land use: Zoned Agriculture and Rural Residential - site isn't currently in use

Describe required zoning/land use, if different: NOt applicable

If a change in zoning/land use is required, please provide details/status of any request for change of
zoning/land use requirements: _Notapplicable

Is the proposed project located on a site where the known or potential presence of contaminants is

complicating the development/use of the property? If yes, please explain: No

Have site plans been submitted to the appropriate planning board or department?

[m] Yes or[_] No

** If yes, please provide the Agency with a copy of the related State Environmental Quality
Review Act (“SEQR”) Environmental Assessment Form that may have been required to be submitted

along with the site plan application to the éppropriate planning department. Please provide the Agency
Negative Declaration

with the status with respect to any required planning department approval:

and Special Use Permit were both issued by the town of Wilna.

Has the Project received site plan approval from the planning department? [M] Yes or[] No.

If Yes, please provide the Agency with a copy of the planning department approval along with

the related SEQR determination.

E) Has a Phase I Environmental Assessment been prepared, or will one be prepared with respect to the

proposed project site? [M] Yes or[ ] No Ifyes, please provide a copy.

F) Have any other studies or assessments been undertaken with respect to the proposed project site that
indicate the known or suspected presence of contamination that would complicate the site’s development?

[] Yes or [ No. Ifyes, please provide copies of the study

G) Provide any additional information or details:

Revised Date: , Revision #:

Document Date: 7/28/2022

-88-



10

H) Select Project Type for all end users at project site (you may check more than one):

** Please check any and all end users as identified below.

Industrial ] Back Office ]
Acquisition of Existing Facility [ ] Retail L]
Housing ] Mixed Use ]
Equipment Purchase [x] Facility for Aging L]
Multi-Tenant ] Civic Facility (not for profity [ ]
Commercial ] Other Solar PV Plant [x]

** Will customers personally visit the Project site for either of the following economic activities? If yes
with respect to either economic activity indicated below, complete the Retail Questionnaire contained in
Section III of the Application.

Retail Sales: [_] Yes or [M] No Services: [_] Yes or [M] No
For purposes of this question, the term “retail sales” means (i) sales by a registered vendor under
Article 28 of the Tax Law of the State of New York (the “Tax Law”) primarily engaged in the retail sale

of tangible personal property (as defined in Section 1101(b)(4)(i) of the Tax Law), or (ii) sales of a
service to customers who personally visit the Project.

I) Project Information:

Estimated costs in connection with Project:

Renewable Energy Projects use Cost Section on page 11.

1. Land and/or Building Acquisition: $

acres square feet

New Bﬁilding Construction: square feet
New Building Addition(s): square feet
Infrastructure Work

Reconstruction/Renovation: square feet
Manufacturing Equipment:

Non-Manufacturing Equipment (furniture, fixtures, etc.):
Soft Costs: (professional services, etc.):

Other, Specify:

¥ PN oA wN
& B A H A A o o

&3

TOTAL Capital Costs:

Revised Date: , Revision #:

Document Date: 7/28/2022

-89-



11

Renewable Energy Project: Project Costs

3.84 \wic

1. Project size 3 MWac

$2,498,600

2. Solar equipment costs
(panels, racking, all solar equipment to‘inverters)

;348,000

3. Site equipment and FF&E costs
(on-production equipment from inverter to interconnection,

including site fencing, security and other equipment) .

4. Site work and land preparation costs $ 576,600
(earthwork, roadways, landscaping, and site plan
improvements, highway cuts, wetland mitigation and
other onsite infrastructure costs) '
5. All interconnection costs whether direct or indirect $ 392’442

expense through utility

;106,077

6. All pre-development costs, including planning, engineering,
site plan and permitting

7. Battery storage costs-

8. Battery storage capacity 0 MWac 0 MWdc
9. All other soft costs including legal, planning and permitting $ 45’000

10. Community benefit payments or impact fees $ 0

11. Community adder $ 0

12. Community or market transition credit $ 0

+$14,000

13. Total annual lease amount for project

14. Other (please identify): , $
General Labor - $600,000

Electrical - $440,000

+5,020,119

Total:

Have any of the above costs been paid or incurred as of the date of this Application? @‘Yes or[] No

- i d and paid
T Ves, descifbe partieulars: All pre-development costs except for PILOT have been incurred and pai

Revised Date: , Revision #:

Document Date: 7/28/2022

-9Q-



12

Project refinancing; estimated amount

(for refinancing of existing de.bt only) b N/A

Sources of Funds for Project Costs:
Bank Fiﬁancing: | . $4'518'107
Equity (excluding equity that is attributed to grants/tax credits) $ $502’01 2

< N/A
; N/A

Tax Exempt Bond Issuance (if applicable)
Taxable Bond Issuance (if applicable)

Public Sources (Include sum total of all state and federal 1 672 313
grants and tax credits) ‘ $

Identify each state and federal grant/credit:

Federal ITC 5 1:249,473
NYSERDA MW Block § 422,840
b
Total Sources of Funds for Project Costs: $ 5,020,119

Have any of the above costs been paid or incurred as of the date of this Application? [®] Yes or[] No

If Yes, describe particulars:All pre-development costs have been incurred and paid

Revised Date: , Revision #:

Document Date: 7/28/2022

-91-



13

Mortgage Recording Tax Exemption Benefit: Amount of mortgage that would be subject to mortgage
recording tax:

Mortgage Amount (include sum total of construction/permanent/bridge financing): § 4.518.107

Estimated Mortgage Recording Tax Exemption Benefit (product of mortgage

Amount as indicated above multiplied by _ %): § 33886
Construction Cost Breakdown:
Total Cost of Construction - $ 5.020,119 (sum of 2,3,4,5, and/or 7 in Question I, above)
Cost for materials: $ 3,236,119
% sourced in Jefferson County: 0 % ,
% sourced in New York State $200,000 % (including Jefferson County)

List major material suppliers if known

Cost for labor: §$ 1.784,000

Expected Full-Time Equivalent Jobs during construction 30
Expected Total Labor Hours during construction 7.200

List major subcontractors, if known

Sales and Use Tax: Gross amount of costs for goods and services that are subject to State and local Sales
and Use tax - said amount to benefit from the Agency’s Sales and Use Tax exemption benefit:

$3.236,119
Estimated State and local Sales and Use Tax Benefit (product of 8 % multiplied by the figure, above):
$ 258,890

** Note that the estimate provided above will be provided to the New York State Department of Taxation
and Finance. The Applicant acknowledges that the transaction documents may include a covenant by the
Applicant to undertake the total amount of investment as proposed within this Application, and that the
estimate, above, represents the maximum amount of sales and use tax benefit that the Agency may
authorize with respect to this Application. The Agency may utilize the estimate, above, as well as the
proposed total Project Costs as contained within this Application, to determine the Financial Assistance

that will be offered.

Real Property Tax Benefit:

Identify and describe if the Project will utilize a real property tax exemption benefit OTHER
THAN the Agency’s PILOT benefit: _NotApplicable

Revised Date: , Revision #:

Document Date: 7/28/2022

-92-



14

JCIDA PILOT Benefit: Agency staff will indicate the amount of PILOT Benefit based on estimated
Project Costs as contained herein and anticipated tax rates and assessed valuation, including the annual
PILOT Benefit abatement amount for each year of the PILOT benefit year and the sum total of PILOT
Benefit abatement amount for the term of the PILOT as depicted in Section II(I) of the Application.

Percentage of Project Costs financed from Public Sector sources: Agency staff will calculate the
percentage of Project Costs financed from Public Sector sources based upon Sources of Funds for Project

Costs as depicted above in Section II(I) of the Application.

J) For the proposed facility, please indicate the square footage for each of the uses outlined below:

*If company is paying for FFE for tenants, please include in cost breakdown
Square Footage Cost % of Total Cost of Project

Manufacturing/Processing

Warehouse

Research & Development

Commercial

Retail (see section K)
Office
Specify Other

K) What is your project timetable (Provide dates):

1. Start date: acquisition of equipment or construction of facilities: January, 2023

2. Estimated completion date of project: August, 2023

3. Project occupancy — estimated starting date of operations: August, 2023

4. Have construction contracts been signed? [ ] Yes or [®] No

5. Has Financing been finalized? [ ] Yes or[®] No
** If constructions contracts have been signed, please provide copies of executed construction contracts

and a complete project budget. The complete project budget should include all related construction costs

totaling the amount of the new building construction, and/or new building addition(s), and/or renovation.

Revised Date: , Revision #:

Document Date: 7/28/2022

-03-



15

L) Is the proposed Project necessary to expand Applicant employment: [®] Yes or[] No

Is the proposed Project necessary to retain existing employment: E] Yes or[ ] No
M) Employmenf Plan (Specific to the proposed project location):
Current # of jobs at [[F FINANCIAL [F FINANCIAL
IASSISTANCE IS

proposed project ASSISTANCE IS
location or to be GRANTED - project

relocated at project [the number of FTE
location _ jobs to be RETAINED

GRANTED - project
the number of FTE
jobs to be CREATED
upon THREE Years
after Project
completion

**Full time
FTE)

0

0.33

0.33

** By statute, Agency staff must project the number of FTE jobs that would be retained and created if the

request for Financial Assistance is granted. Agency staff will project such jobs over the Three-Year time

period following Project completion. convert part-time jobs into FTE jobs by dividing the number of

part-time jobs by two (2). A FTE job is one that works the equivalent of a 40-hour week for 48 weeks. A

part-time job is one that works the equivalent of a 20-hour week for 24 weeks.

Salary and Fringe Benefits for Jobs to be Retained and Created:

Category of Jobs to be FTE Average Salary or Range of Salary |Average Fringe Benefits or,
Retained and Created Range of Fringe Benefits
Management

Professional

Administrative

Production

Transportation/Logistics

Warehousing

Other Maintenance $30,000

TOTAL $30,000
Revised Date: , Revision #:

-94-

Document Date: 7/28/2022



16

Employment at other locations in County/City/Town/Village: (provide address and number of employees
at each location):

Location Address

Full time

Part Time
Total

N) Will any of the facilities described above be closed or subject to reduced activity? [ Yes or[®] No

L If any of the facilities described above are located within the State of New York, and you answered

Yes to the question, above, you must complete Section IV of this Application.

** Please note that the Agency may utilize the foregoing employment projections, among other items, to
determine the Financial Assistance that will be offered by the Agency to the Applicant. The Applicant
acknowledges that the transaction documents may include a covenant by the Applicant to retain the

number of jobs and create the number of jobs with respect to the Project as set forth in this Application.

0) Is the proposed Project reasonably necessary to prevent the Applicant from moving out of New York

State? [] Yes or[®] No.  Out of Jefferson County? ] Yes or[®] No.

If yes, please explain and identify the other locations being investigated, type of assistance offered and

provide supporting documentation if available: Sponsor of Applicant is investigating many different

types of similar projects throughout the state. Assistance differs. One project's success is unrelated to another's.

P) What competitive factors led you to inquire about sites outside of Jefferson County or New York
State? Sponsor is _
participating in a state-wide program managed by NYSERDA so there are opportunities

state-wide.

Q) Have you contacted or been contacted by other Local, State and/or Federal Economic Development
Agencies? [ ] Yes or[®] No.

Have you applied, or intend to apply for additional Grant Funding, or tax incentives? [ ] Yes or [=] No.
If yes, please identify which agencies and what other Local, State and/or Federal assistance and the

assistance sought and dollar amount that is anticipated to be received:

Revised Date: , Revision #:

Document Date: 7/28/2022

-95-



17

"To ensure compliance with Section 862 of the New York General Municipal Law, the Agency
requires additional information if the proposed Project is one where customers personally visit the
Project site to undertake either a retail sale transaction or to purchase services.

Please answer the following:

A. Will any portion of the Project (including that portion of the cost to be financed from equity or
other sources) consist of facilities or property that are or will be primarily used in making sales of
goods or services to customers who personally visit the project site?

[] Yes or [m] No. If the answer is yes, please continue. If no, proceed to section V

For purposes of Question A, the term “retail sales” means (i) sales by a registered vendor under
Article 28 of the Tax Law of the State of New York (the “Tax Law”) primarily engaged in the
retail sale of tangible personal property (as defined in Section 1101(b)(4)(i) of the Tax Law), or
(ii) sales of a service to customers who personally visit the Project.

B. What percentage of the cost of the Project will be expended on such facilities or property
primarily used in making sales of goods or services to customers who personally visit the project?
%. If the answer is less than 33% do not complete the remainder

of the retail determination and proceed to section V.

If the answer to A is Yes AND the answer to Question B is greater than 33.33%. indicate which
of the following questions below apply to the project:

1. Will the Project be operated by a not-for-profit corporation [_] Yes or [ ] No.

2. Is the Project location or facility likely to attract a significant number of visitors from outside
the economic development region (list specific County or ED region) in which the project will be

located?

[] Yes or[[] No
If yes, please provide a third-party market analysis or other documentation supporting your
response.

3. Is the predominant purpose of the Project to make available goods or services which would
not, but for the Project, be reasonably accessible to the residents of the municipality within which
the proposed Project would be located because of a lack of reasonably accessible retail trade
facilities offering such goods or services?

[J Yesor[] No

- Revised Date: ' , Revision #:

Document Date: 7/28/2022

-96-



18

If yes, please provide a third-party market analysis or other documentation supporting your
response.

4. Will the Project preserve permanent, private sector jobs or increase the overall number of
permanent, private sector jobs in the State of New York?

[] Yes or[] No.

If yes, explain

5. Is the Project located in a Highly Distressed Area? [ ] Yes or [ ] No

The Agency is required by State law to make a determination that, if completion of a Project benefiting
from Agency Financial Assistance results in the removal of an industrial or manufacturing plant of the
Applicant from one area of New York State to another area of the State; or in the abandonment of one or
more plants or facilities of the ‘Applicant located within the New York State , Agency Financial
Assistance is required to prevent the Applicant from relocating out of the New York State, or is
reasonably necessary to preserve the Applicant’s competitive position in its respective industry.

Explain how the Agency’s Financial Assistance is required to prevent the Project from relocating out of
New York State, or is reasonably necessary to preserve the Project occupant’s competitive position in its

respective industry: NotApplicable ,

(Adaptive Reuse is the process of adapting old structures or sites for new purposes)

Are you applying for a tax incentive under the Adaptive Reuse Program? [] Yes or [=] No

If No, please proceed to next Section

A) What is the age of the structure (in years)

B) Has the structure been vacant or underutilized for a_minimum of 3 years? (Underutilized is defined as a
minimum of 50% of the rentable square footage of the structure being utilized for a use for which the structure

was not designed or intended) [] Yes or [ ] No. How many years?

Revised Date: , Revision #:

Document Date: 7/28/2022

-97-



19

C) Is the structure currently generating insignificant income? (Insignificant income is defined as income that is
50% or less than the market rate income average for that property class) [] Yes or[] No
If yes, please provide dollar amount of income being generated, if any

D) Does the site have historical significance? [] Yes or[] No

E) Are you applying for either State/Federal Historical Tax Credit Programs? [] Yes or [] No. Ifyes, provide
estimated value of tax credits

F) Summarize the financial obstacles to development that this project faces without Agency or other public
assistance. Please provide the Agency with documentation to support the financial obstacles to development
(you will be asked to provide cash flow projections, documenting costs, expenses and revenues with and
without IDA and other tax credits included indicating below average return on investment rates compared to

regional industry averages):

G) Briefly summarize the demonstrated support that you intend to receive from local government entities. Please
provide the Agency documentation of this support in the form of signed letters from these entities:

H) Please indicate other factors that you would like the Agency to consider such as: structure or site presents
significant public safety hazard and or environmental remediation costs, site or structure is located in distressed
census tract, structure presents significant costs associated with building code compliance, site has historical
significance, site or structure is presently delinquent in property tax payments:

Revised Date: ] , Revision #:

Document Date: 7/28/2022

-08-



20

** Section V of this Application will be: (i) completed by IDA Staff based upon information
contained within the Application, and (ii) provided to the Applicant for ultimate inclusion as part
of this completed Application.

PILOT Estimate Table Worksheet

Dollar Value | Estimated County Tax Local Tax Rate School Tax
of New New Assessed | Rate/1000 (Town/City/Village)/1000 | Rate/1000
Construction | Value of
and Property
Renovation Subject to
Costs IDA*

*Apply equalization rate to value
PILOT % County Local School Total Full Tax | Net
Year Payment | PILOT PILOT PILOT PILOT Payment | Exemption

Amount | Amount | Amount w/o.
PILOT
1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9
10
TOTAL

*Estimates provided are based on current property tax rates and assessment values

Revised Date:

, Revision #:

-99-

Document Date: 7/28/2022



21

Percentage of Project Costs financed from Public Sector Table Worksheet:

Total Project | Estimated | Estimated Estimated Value of | Total of Other Public
Cost Value of | Value of Sales | Mortgage Tax Incentives (Tax Credits,
PILOT Tax Incentive | Incentive Grants, ESD Incentives,
etc.)

Calculate %

(Est. PILOT + Est. Sales Tax+ Est. Mortgage Tax+ ther)/Total Project Costs: %

JCIDA will also complete a Cost-Benefit analysis using information contained within this
Application, and available to the Public.

+ i Section VII Representations, Certifications and Indemnification

Jonathan H. Rappe (name of CEO or other authorized representative of Applicant)
confirms and says that he/she is- the  Authorized signatory (title)  of
Wilna PV, LLC (name of corporation or other entity) named in the attached

Application (the “Appllcant”) that he/she has read the foregoing Application and knows the contents
thereof, and hereby represents, understands, and otherwise agrees with the Agency and as follows:

A. Job Listings: In accordance with Section 858-b(2) of the New York General Municipal Law,
the Applicant understands and agrees that, if the Project receives any Financial Assistance
from the Agency, except as otherwise provided by collective bargaining agreements, new
employment opportunities created as a result of the Project will be listed with the New York
State Department of Labor Community Services Division (the “DOL”) and with the
administrative entity (collectively with the DOL, the “JTPA Entities™) of the service delivery
area created by the federal job training partnership act (Public Law 97-300) (“JTPA”) in
which the Project is located. .

B. First Consideration for Employment: In accordance with Section 858-b(2) of the New York
General Municipal Law, the Applicant understands and agrees that, if the Project receives any
Financial Assistance from the Agency, except as otherwise provided by collective bargaining
agreements, where practicable, the Applicant will first consider persons eligible to participate
in JTPA programs who shall be referred by the JTPA Entities for new employment
opportunities created as a result of the Project.

C. Annual Sales Tax Filings: In accordance with Section 874(8) of the New York General
Municipal Law, the Applicant understands and agrees that, if the Project receives any sales
tax exemptions as part of the Financial Assistance from the Agency, in accordance with

Revised Date: , Revision #:

Document Date: 7/28/2022

-100-



22

Section 874(8) of the General Municipal Law, the Applicant agrees to file, or cause to be
filed, with the New York State Department of Taxation and Finance, the annual form
prescribed by the Department of Taxation and Finance, describing the value of all sales tax
exemptions claimed by the Applicant and all consultants or subcontractors retained by the
Applicant. Copies of all filings shall be provided to the Agency.

D. Employment Reports: The Applicant understands and agrees that, if the Project receives any
Financial Assistance from the Agency, the Applicant agrees to file, or cause to be filed, with
the Agency, at least annually or as otherwise required by the Agency, reports regarding the
number of people employed at the project site, salary levels, contractor utilization and such
other information (collectively, “Employment Reports”) that may be required from time to
time on such appropriate forms as designated by the Agency. Failure to provide Employment
Reports within 30 days of an Agency request shall be an Event of Default under the PILOT
Agreement between the Agency and Applicant and, if applicable, an Event of Default under
the Agent Agreement between the Agency and Applicant. In addition, a Notice of Failure to
provide the Agency with an Employment Report may be reported to Agency board members,
said report being an agenda item subject to the Open Meetings Law.

E. The Applicant acknowledges that certain environmental representations will be required at
closing. The Applicant shall provide with this Representation, Certification and
Indemnification Form copies of any known environmental reports, including any existing
Phase I Environmental Site Assessment Report(s) and/or Phase II Environmental
Investigations. The Agency may require the Company and/or owner of the premises to
prepare and submit an environmental assessment and audit report, including but not
necessarily limited to, a Phase I Environmental Site Assessment Report and a Phase II
Environmental Investigation, with respect to the Premises at the sole cost and expense of the
owner and/or the Applicant. All environmental assessment and audit reports shall be
completed in accordance with ASTM Standard Practice E1527-05, and shall be conformed
over to the Agency so that the Agency is authorized to use and rely on the reports. The
Agency, however, does not adopt, ratify, confirm or assume any representation made within

reports required herein. ‘

F. The Applicant and/or the owner, and their successors and assigns, hereby release, defend and
indemnify the Agency from any and all suits, causes of action, litigations, damages, losses,
liabilities, obligations, penalties, claims, demands, judgments, costs, disbursements, fees or
expenses of any kind or nature whatsoever (including, without limitation, attorneys’,
consultants’ and experts’ fees) which may at any time be imposed upon, incurred by or
asserted or awarded against the Agency, resulting from or arising out of any inquiries and/or
environmental assessments, investigations and audits performed on behalf of the Applicant
and/or the owner pursuant hereto, including the scope, level of detail, contents or accuracy of
any environmental assessment, audit, inspection or investigation report completed hereunder
and/or the selection of the environmental consultant, engineer or other qualified person to
perform such assessments, investigations, and audits.

G. Hold Harmless Provision: The Applicant acknowledges and agrees that the Applicant shall be
and is responsible for all costs of the Agency incurred in connection with any actions required
to be taken by the Agency in furtherance of the Application including the Agency’s costs of
general counsel and/or the Agency’s bond/transaction counsel whether or not the Application,
the proposed Project it describes, the attendant negotiations, or the issue of bonds or other

Revised Date: , Revision #:

Document Date: 7/28/2022

-101-



23

transaction or agreement are ultimately ever carried to successful conclusion and agrees that
the Agency shall not be liable for and agrees to indemnify, defend, and hold the Agency
harmless from and against any and all liability arising from or expense incurred by: (i) the
Agency's examination and processing of, and action pursuant to or upon, the Application,
regardless of whether or not the Application or the proposed Project described herein or the
tax exemptions and other assistance requested herein are favorably acted upon by the
Agency; (ii) the Agency's acquisition, construction and/or installation of the proposed Project
described herein; and (iii) any further action taken by the Agency with respect to the
proposed Project including, without limiting the generality of the foregoing, all causes of
action and attorney's fees and any other expenses incurred in defending any suits or actions
which may arise as a result of any of the foregoing. Applicant hereby understands and agrees,
in accordance with Section 875(3) of the New York General Municipal Law and the policies
of the Agency that any New York State and local sales and use tax exemption claimed by the
Applicant and approved by the Agency, any mortgage recording tax exemption claimed by
the Applicant and approved by the Agency, and/or any real property tax abatement claimed
by the Applicant and approved by the Agency, in connection with the Project, may be subject
to recapture and/or termination by the Agency under such terms and conditions as will be
established by the Agency and set forth in transaction documents to be entered into by and
between the Agency and the Applicant. The Applicant further represents and warrants that
the information contained in this Application, including without limitation information
regarding the amount of the New York State and local sales and use tax exemption benefit,
the amount of the mortgage recording tax exemption benefit, and the amount of the real
property tax abatement, if and as applicable, to the best of the Applicant’s knowledge, is true,
accurate and complete.

H. This obligation includes an obligation to submit an Agency Fee Payment to the Agency in
accordance with the Agency Fee policy effective as of the date of this Application

I By executing and submitting this Application, the Applicant covenants and agrees to pay the
following fees to the Agency and the Agency’s general counsel and/or the Agency’s
bond/transaction counsel, the same to be paid at the times indicated:

(i) a non-refundable $ application and publication fee (the “Application Fee”);
(ii) a$ . expense deposit for the Agency’s Counsel Fee Deposit.

(iii)  Unless otherwise agreed to by the Agency, an amount equal to percent
( %) of the total project costs.

(iv)  All fees, costs and expenses incurred by the Agency for (1) legal services, including but
not limited to those provided by the Agency’s general counsel and/or the Agency’s bond/transaction
counsel, thus note that the Applicant is entitled to receive a written estimate of fées and costs of the
Agency’s general counsel and the Agency’s bond/transaction counsel; and (2) other consultants
retained by the Agency in connection with the proposed project, with all such charges to be paid by

the Applicant at the closing.

J. If the Applicant fails to conclude or consummate the necessary negotiations, or fails, within a
reasonable or specified period of time, to take reasonable proper or requested action, or
withdraws, abandons, cancels, or neglects the Application, or if the Applicant is unable to

Revised Date: , Revision #:

Document Date: 7/28/2022

~102-



24

find buyers willing to purchase the bond issue requested, or if the Applicant is unable to
facilitate the sale/leaseback or lease/leaseback transaction, then, upon the presentation of an
invoice, Applicant shall pay to the Agency, its agents, or assigns all actual costs incurred by
. the Agency in furtherance of the Application, up to that date and time, including but not
necessarily limited to, fees of the Agency’s general counsel and/or the Agency’s

bond/transaction counsel. :

K. The Applicant acknowledges and agrees that all payment liabilities to the Agency and the
Agency’s general counsel and/or the Agency’s bond and/or transaction counsel as expressed
in Sections H and I are obligations that are not dependent on final documentation of the

transaction contemplated by this Application.

L. The cost incurred by the Agency and paid by the Applicant, the Agency’s general counsel
and/or bond/transaction counsel fees and the processing fees, may be considered as a cost of
the Project and included in the financing of costs of the proposed Project, except as limited by
the applicable provisions of the Internal Revenue Code with respect to tax-exempt bond

financing.

M. The Applicant acknowledges that the Agency is subject to New York State’s Freedom of
Information Law (FOIL). Applicant understands that all Project information and records
related to this application are potentially subject to disclosure under FOIL subject to

limited statutory exclusions.

N. The Applicant acknowledges that it has been provided with a copy of the Agency’s Policy for
Termination of Agency Benefits and Recapture of Agency Benefits Previously Granted (the
“Termination and Recapture Policy”). The Applicant covenants and agrees that it fully
understands that the Termination and Recapture Policy is applicable to the Project that is the
subject of this Application, and that the Agency will implement the Termination and
Recapture Policy if and when it is so required to do so. The Applicant further covenants and
agrees that its Project is potentially subject to termination of Agency financial assistance
and/or recapture of Agency financial assistance so provided and/or previously granted.

0. The Applicant understands and agrees that the provisions of Section 862(1) of the New York -
General Municipal Law, as provided below, will not be violated if Financial Assistance is

provided for the proposed Project:

'§ 862. Restrictions on funds of the agency. (1) No funds of the agency shall be used in
respect of any project if the completion thereof would result in the removal of an industrial or
manufacturing plant of the project occupant from one area of the state to another area of the
state or in the abandonment of one or more plants or facilities of the project occupant located
within the state, provided, however, that neither restriction shall apply if the agency shall
determine on the basis of the application before it that the project is reasonably necessary to
discourage the project occupant from removing such other plant or facility to a location
outside the state or is reasonably necessary to preserve the competitive position of the project

occupant in its respective industry.

P. The Applicant confirms and acknowledges that the owner, occupant, or operator receiving
Financial Assistance for the proposed Project is in substantial compliance with applicable
local, state and federal tax, worker protection and environmental laws, rules and regulations.

Revised Date: , Revision #:

Document Date: 7/28/2022

-103-



25

Q. The Applicant confirms and acknowledges that the submission of any knowingly false or
knowingly misleading information may lead to the immediate termination of any Financial
Assistance and the reimbursement of an amount equal to all or part of any tax exemption
claimed by reason of the Agency’s involvement the Project.

R. The Applicant confirms and hereby acknowledges that as of the date of this Application, the
Applicant is in substantial compliance with all provisions of Article 18-A of the New York
General Municipal Law, including, but not limited to, the provision of Section 859-a and
Section 862(1) of the New York General Municipal Law.

S. The Applicant and the individual executing this Application on behalf of Applicant
acknowledge that the Agency and its counsel will rely on the representations and covenants
made in this Application when acting hereon and hereby represents that the statements made
herein do not contain any untrue statement of a material fact and do not omit to state a
material fact necessary to make the statements contained herein not misleading.

STATE OF NEW YORK ygn)
COUNTY OF JEFFERSONW™ ) s5.:

/—‘1)’\ % }L‘\ H . ﬂ’\(’{\/ being first duly swomn, deposes and says:

1. That I am the S\Sm“‘!'o’\l (Corporate Ofﬁce) of w ‘nc'v lPU L’(-C/
(Applicant) and that I am duly authonzcd on behalf of the Apphcant to bind the Applicant.

2. That I have read the attached Application, I know the contents { reof and that to the best of
my knowledge and belief, this Application and the contents off this Application are true,
accurate and complete. Z

d to me undeppenalties of perjury
200

Subscribed and affi
this

LAWANNA MELVIN
/ Notary Public, State of New York
— - No. 01ME6410689
(Notary Public) Qualified jn Kings County
Commisslon Expires November 2, 2024

Revised Date: , Revision #:

Document Date: 7/28/2022

-104-



Supplement to Wilna PV, LLC’s PILOT Application for 3 MW Solar PV Plant

Response to Section Il (B)

Agency Financial Assistance is required to 1) meet the investment return thresholds required for a
project-based investment of this kind and 2) provide the certainty of operating cashflow required to
raise financing for the projects. The mortgage recording tax abatement, sales and use tax abatement
and PILOT will all contribute to #1. There is currently no accepted framework in New York State for
assessing the value of solar projects for tax purposes. Given the fact that expected revenues are fairly
flat, greater certainty around annual tax or PILOT payments is required in order to raise debt financing.

Statement on Section Ii (1)

The project is eligible for an investment tax credit and accelerated depreciation at the Federal level and
NYSERDA incentives at the state level. None of these benefits are available to the project until it is
operational, so both construction and permanent financing will be 100% through private sources of
capital. Therefore, the value of the incentives isn’t included in the Sources of Funds.

-105-



(911 3a)
511 A BULIAN

. o

_ DTIOLOAMINDN

O113a)

511 Qusiudoiensa S

(01035 3q) ‘ (NIVdS)

toneledion e 7S ‘SIUD WIISOAU]
AuUstIsonu| sjgemausy NAS I

dY10S YNTIM ¥Oo4d

SAILILNI ADYANST DIy

-106-



Sjueynsuoy bupioauibug 957

<0. HOXY 3718 133HS
~S0X.rZ 328 TYNIOINO

a4

3IVOS uva

‘NV1d
LS viyay

e

S99€ET AN
‘a3plg |eInIeN Ty 2IN0Y 03 6542V
$S34AAQv 3LIS

dVI10S VNIIM

swep joafoid

AORTI3 12

X R 3

oaivoy
2330w

SIN dVIN NO

T N Y

IONVEUNLSIA 30 VANV VIOL
s MA/STUDV
gy WISNI1 INM AN IVIOL
19E°L HIONI1 VOl $S300V
960 HIONT1 JON3d
%L6'SE u9
0 HINWZY
2z HOLld
209% FIONY LI
LESEO-LEESSTOT | (W) Wbopm 2 3 sbain el |
LS X015/ X./o695 (88) | MINOWMI 3HI 40 SNOISNAWI |
ETECECTY _3dAL AYHHY HVI0S
St ALILNVND
| Siogos maibuns 1 EEICEN]
8z 'ONIYLS ¥3d S3INTON
¥29's ALLINVND
[ 0957 Ov-ariossizss | 3dAL NGO
000'c T s 35
———ee ] mibdiamswasas |
T4} Eil
VIZVZ5 TSI SNOT
2911507y VT
anaoa

PV

oe:@ zzoz/ez/s

(12

-107-



	doc01521820220830144026
	doc01521920220830144200

